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Adconion Media Group Limited

Strategic report
Strategic repbrt for the year ended 31 December 2013 '

Principal activities

The principal activities of the group continues to be the provision of performance-driven Online Advertising
Networks which deliver online advertisements using proprietary technology that provide better results for
advertisers and optimal revenue for publishers. ’

Adconion Media Group conducts business globally and has 24 offices in 13 countries: UK, US, Canada,
Germany, France, Spain, Switzerland, Russia, Italy, _Sweden, Denmark, Netherlands and Australia.

. The principal activity of the parent company during the year was that of a non-trading holding company for the
group. This includes administrative and marketing functions, but also providing intercompany finance.

Review of the business and key performance mdlcators
The statement of comprehensive income of the group for the year is set out on page 11.

The directors feel that the company has suffered from the challenging economic climate and increased market
competition in the group’s main operating areas. Adconion Media Group’s overall revenues declined by 17% in
the course of the year following an increase of 21% in 2012. :

The business in Continental Europe and in the United Kingdom remained stable compared to the previous year.
The business in North America suffered from difficulties in the direct marketing activities while the revenues
with the agencies continued to increase. The business in Australia continued to suffer from the uncertain
economic environment as well as from increased competition in the market. Nevertheless, most local entities -
.were able to secure their market positions. Further geographlcal information is prov1ded in note 3 to the
financial statements.

1In September 2013, Adconion Direct, Inc. acquired certain assets from Telic Interactive, Inc. to strengthen its
market position in the direct marketing business in North America. .

The group has secured additional shareholder loan facilities of $20m for the ongoing working capital
requirements and the global growth of the group. :

" In July 2014, Amobee, Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary of Singapore Telecommunications Limited acquired
Adconion Direct North America and Adconion Australia to strengthen its position as the leading provider of
mobile-led digital marketing technology and solutions across all channels and screens for global brands. The
Adconion companies will be acquired at a valuation of $235m. ‘

Management has determined that the recoverable amount allocated to the smartelip group CGU had been
impaired by $99.1m as a consequence of the impairment test results and the trading performance in the -
underlying business. Also the recoverable amount alloéated to the Blackstar unit within the Frontline Direct
group CGU has been fully impaired by $9.8m as the assets acquired no longer generate cash for the group.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

‘Strategic réport (continued)

Review of the business and key perforniance indicators (continued)
Details and analysis of key performance indicators (KPI's) can be summarised as follows:

2013 2012 Analysis

$000 $000
Revenue o 283,666 - 340,065
Movement in revenue in % (17)% 21%  While revenues in North America and Australia

declined by appr. 30% due to increased market
competition, business development in the UK
and in Continental Europe remained stable.

Gross profit } 92,649 - 117,293

Gross profit margin in % on 32.7% 34.5%  Gross profit margin is down from prior year, but
revenue ~ ' remains within expectations.
Adjusted EBITDA . 45 14,069
Adjusted EBITDA marginin . 0.0% 41%  The decrease in adjusted EBITDA margin
% ’ ‘ remains within expectations and tracking the
’ decrease in Revenue and Gross profit.
Loss for the year from - (160,479) (31,543)  The increase in loss for the year is mainly
continuing operations impacted by the impairment charges for

previous years’ acquisitions.

*Refer note 3 geograi)hical'analysis for further detail.

Future development , _
Despite the-overall uncertainty about the development of the global economy Adconion Media Group plans for
further growth in 2014 and beyond. These growth plans are supported by a further shift in the spending of
agencies and direct marketers from offline media to onliné advertising business. Adconion Media Group is well
prepared due to its diversified product offerings to benefit from these market trends and a global recovery.
After the sale of the US and the Australian business activities in the course of 2014, Adconion Media Group
plans to concentrate on the further development of the business in Continental Europe and in the United
‘Kingdom.

Budget plans foresee further revenue growth in these regions in 2014. As the operating cost basis is expected to
increase slower than the top line growth, an improvement in performance is expected.

Although the group has proven to be successful even in uncertain economic environments the remaining risk of
a global recession and significant restrictions on marketing spending have to be considered.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Directors’ report

~ Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2013
The directors present their report and the audited group financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Financial results and dividends

Adconion Media Group has achieved positive adjusted EBITDA in the course of 2013 and is expected for 2014
and the following years. Net proﬁts will be re-invested into the European business and further growth
opportunities.

The Directors do not recommend a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013" (2012: $Nil).

Directors :
The directors of the company who served throughout the year and up to the date of this report unless otherw1se
noted are listed below:

F R Krueger (resigned 01 May 2013)
N V Sunderland (Chairman)
F A Boehnke (resigned 21 July 2013) '
T T Moebius ' )
G Zocco s
D Vidal
T Falk
R Dighero A 3
K Reed Perell
A Markus (appointed 21 July 2013)

Financial risk management

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the group’s ﬁnanc1al
performance Further details are provided in note 31 to the financial statements.

Creditor payment policy

The.group’s policy is to settle terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction,
ensure that suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and abide by the terms of payment. Trade
creditors of the group at 31 December 2013 were equivalent to 79 days’ purchases (2012: 63 days’ ), based on the
average daily amount invoiced by suppliers during the year.

Research and development activities :

The group invested $8.3m in the year (2012: $6.5m) on development activities. This expenditure was mainly
related to the further development of Adconion’s proprietary Ad Serving and Video Technology. This
technology enables the group to deliver its advertising products with high quality on its own platform and
mdependently from 3rd party providers. .

Corporate governance
Although not required by regulation or leglslatlon the dlrectors have decided to provide the followmg corporate
governance disclosures:

\

The Board of directors, which meets monthly, comprises 2 executive director and 7 non-executive directors. The
Board establishes the principal aims and strategic business direction of the Group and reviews each individual
group company’s objectives and guidelines as well as approving any changes that may be proposed. This .
includes all matters relatmg to financing, capital expenditure, acquisitions and investments in existing and new
companies.

'

Annual operating budgets and the group’s management controls and procedures are subject to direct Board
" review and approval.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

Board committees
The Board has established an audit committee and a remuneration committee with formally delegated duties
and responsibilities.

The audit committee consists of R Dighero, N Sunderland, D Vidal and F Boehnke and is chaired by R Dighero.
The audit committee has responsibility for ensuring that the financial performance, position and prospects of

the group are properly monitored and reported on, for meeting with the auditor and discussing their reports on
the financial statements and the group’s financial controls and for recommending the appointment of auditors.

The remuneration committee consists of N Sunderland, F Boehnke and G Zocco and is chaired by N
Sunderland. The remuneration committee has responsibility for reviewing the performance of the executive
director and his direct reports, reviewing his remuneration, determining the payment of any bonuses and all
matters involving the group’s stock option plans. '

In addition, the non-executive directors have full authority to investigate the group’s affairs and may call upon
external expertise to assist should the need arise.

The remuneration and terms and conditions of appointment of the non-executive directors are set by the Board.
No director may participate in any discussions or decisions regarding his own remuneration.

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying
third party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in
force throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The Company also purchased and maintained
throughout the financial year Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the group has in place a system of internal control. Any system of
internal control can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
key features of the system include a clearly defined structure of responsibility and reporting as well as a system
of internal reporting and review. '

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal system of financial control both for the year under
review and the period to date of approval of these financial statements and believes that the system provides
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions properly authorised and recorded and that
material errors and irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.

Independent auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. A resolution -
concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e  state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company and the group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditors
In accordance with Section 418, the directors confirm, in the case of each director in office at the date the
directors’ report is approved, that:

a) so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and

b) he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

On behalf of the board
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Adconion Media Group Limited .

Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Adconion Media Group Limited

Report on the group financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below:
e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its loss and
- cash flows for the year then ended;
o have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union; and
¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited :
The group financial statements (the “ﬁnanc1a1 statements”), which are prepared by Adconion Media Group
Limited, comprise:
¢ the group statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013;
- the group statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the group statement of cash flows for the year then ended; A
the group statement of chianges in equity for the year then ended; and N
the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information,

The financial reportmg framework that has been applied in their preparanon is applicable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union. .

In applying the ﬂnancial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In makmg such estimates, they have made assumptions
and considered future events.

What an audit of. ﬁnanctal statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK
& Ireland)”). An audit involves obtalnmg evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
e . whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
e the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates rmade by the dJrectors and
e the overall presentation of the financial statements.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual report and Financial
statements (the “Annual Report”) to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acqurred by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 1mp11cat10ns for our report.
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Adconion Media Groﬁp Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Adconion Media Group Limited (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 _
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act. 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we reqmre for our audit. We have no exceptlons to report ansmg from this
responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration spemﬁed by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

.As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 8, the directors are »
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. ' . .

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
_law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in

- accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly. agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company ﬁnanmal statements of Adconion Media Group Limited for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

BHolip.

Brian Henderson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Auditors
London

A CUonan Loy
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Group statement of comprehensive income for

the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes $000 $000
Revenue ‘ o 3 283,666 340,065
Cost of sales ' (191,017) (222,772)
Gross profit 92,649 117,293
Administrative expenses (246,411) (152,180)
Operating loss ' . 9 (153,762) (34,887)
Finance income - - 5 138 168
‘Finance cost . 5 (10,369) (11,778)
Other gains — net ' 8 . 4,884 12,473
Loss for the year on ordinary activities before taxation from (159,109) (34,024)
continuing operations .
Income tax ’ 10 (1,370) 2,481
Loss for the year from continuing 6perations (160,479) (31,543)
Discontinued operations (attributable to the owners of the . ) 4 (67) (464)
company) P
Loss for the financial year -(160,546) (32,007)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 893 1,581
Other comprehensive income from continuing operations, net 893 1,581
of tax
Discontinued operations -4 27 28
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 920 1,609
Total comprehensive income for the year (159,626) (30,398)
Total comprehensive income for the year arising from (159,586) (29,962)
continuing operations
~ Discontinued operations R - 4 (40) (436)
Total comprehensive income for the financial year (159,626) (30,398)
Loss for the financial year from continuing operations
attributable to: '
Owners of the company (160,479) (31,543)
' Total comprehensive income for the year from continuing
operations attributable to: °
Owners of the company (159,586) -(29,962)

The notes on pages 16 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Group statement of “financial posztwn as at 31
December 2013

2013 2012.

Notes $000 $000
)
Non-current assets .
Property, plant and equipment ' o 13 ’ 3,719 5,423
Intangible assets ' ‘ 14 108,993 226,314
112,712 ) . 231,737
Current assets
Trade and other receivables . 20 ] 94,853 " 108,486
Cash and eash equivalents . ) 19 18,718 22,629
, ' ' 113,571 131,115
Total assets - . 226,283 362,852
Current liabilities ' ] ) ] 4
Trade and other payables A C 21 (85,182) (96,768)
Borrowings ‘ 22 . (36,824) - (28,671)
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L 17 2 »-A (3.039)
Provision for other liabilities and charges . 24 (671) ' (1,319)
Long term employee benefits 23 . (5,516) (1,817)
Share based compensation ’ . .26 . : (1,617)
Corporation tax : (539) (198)
(128,732) . (133,429)
Non-current liabilities ) ‘

- Borrowings ’ - 22 " (69,288) (41,499)
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L : 17 (1,378) (3,080)
Provision for other liabilities and charges _ 24 - (547)
Long term employee benefits : ) oo 23 (3,639) (3,081)
Share based compensation - 26 (10,976) ' (9,594)
Deferred tax liabilities ‘ . - 1 "~ (9,320) - (8,136)

. (94,601) (65,937)

_ Total liabilities ' (223,333)  (199,366)
Net assets . . 2,950 163,486
Equity v '

Called up share capital ‘ : ’ 27 . 1,148 1,125
Share premium account - - : 28 273,618 - 1269,310
Retained earnings N - (268,989) ' (103,622)
Other reserves . - 803
Exchange reserves C : (3,210) (4,130) .
Equity attributable to owners of the company : ' 2,950 163,486
Total equity o : 2,950 163,486
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Group statement of financial position as at 31
December 2013 (continued)

The notes on pages 16 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements, which comprise the group statement of comprehensive income, the group
statement of financial position, the group statement of changes in equity, the group statement of cash flows and

the related notes were approved and authorised by the board of directors on MQ Y

Company number: 05833659
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Group statement of changes in equlty for the
year ended 31 December 2013

. Share . .
Called up premium - Other Exchange
share capital account Retained earnings reserves reserves Total equity
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

At 1 January - ' 512
2012 925 161,296 (76,245) (5,739) 80,749

Loss for the . .
financial year -o- - (32,007) - - (32,007)

Exchange . .
differences - - - - 1,609 1,609

s

Total

comprehensive . '
income - - (32,007) - 1,609 (30,398)

Share warrants -
issued :
(note 22) - - - . 359 ’ — 359

Share warrants
exercised .
(note 22) ) - 68 - (68) - . -

Issue of share
capital ’ o
(note 27 and 28) 200 107,946 . - - - 108,146

"Share based
compensation

(note 26) - - 4,630 - - 4,630

At 31 December " 803 '
2012 . 1,125 269,310 (103,622) (4,130) 163,486

Loss for the
" financial year - - (160,546) - - {160,546)

Exchange . . .
differences . - ) - - - © 920 920

Total .
comprehensive . .
income - - : (160,546) - 920 (159,626)

Share warrants
exercised
(note 22) . - 420 - (420) - -

Issue of share
capital .
(note 27 and 28) 23- 3,888 : - - ) - : 3,911

Share based
compensation
(note 26) - - 748 - - ) 748

Share based

" compensation

settlement (note .

26) - ) - (5,569) - - (5,569)

At 31 December ' ' . 383 O
2013 : 1,148 273,618 - (268,989) (3,210) 2,950

The notes on pages 16to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Group statement of cash flows for the yedr

ended 31 December 2013

- 2013 2012
Notes - $000 $000
Cash inflows from operating activities
Cash used in operations 29 {7,254) 7,956
Income tax paid (198) (488)
Net gas!'u generate_d from/(used in) operating activities - (7.452) 7.468
continuing operations
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities - 4 16 (985)
discontinuing operations :
Total Net cash gene}ated from/(used in) operating activities (7,436) 6,483
3
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (539) (2,605)
Purchase of intangibles (1 0,61 1) (7,591)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (1,264) -
Interest received ' 138 64
Net cash used in investing activities - continuing operations (11,676) (10,132)
Total Net cash used in investing activities . : [ (11,676) (10,132)
Cash roWs from financing activities
Proceeds.from issue of share capital 307 200 ‘
Proceeds from borrowings 20,343 10,977
Repayment of borrowings (3,380) (7,623)
Interest paid (2,624) (1,519)
Net ca_sh generated from financing activities - continuing 14,646 2,035
operations
Total Net cash generated from financing activities 14,646 2,035
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,466) (1,614)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,773) (347)
Exchange (losses)/ gains on cash and cash equivalents (72) 188
(6,311) (1,773)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 16 to 56 form part of these financial statem_ehts.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013

1. General information :
Adconion Media Group Limited is a private hmlted liability company mcorporated and domiciled in the United
Kingdom. The company was incorporated on 31 May 2006. The address of the registered office is given on page
3. The principal activities of the group are set out in the Strategic report. Amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousands and are suffixed with a “k” in certain disclosure paragraphs, unless otherwise stated

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below and have been consistently applied to all years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Adconion Media Group Limited have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, IFRIC interpretations
and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although the estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those
estimates. The most significant of these relates to impairments.

Going concern.

The group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through its bank facﬂmes The group has secured
additional funding through the sale of Adconion Direct North America and Adconion Australia to Amobee as
described in note 33. Cash resources will now be available to support any outstandmg con31derat10n for current
acquisitions and working capital requirements. ’

. The current economic conditions continue to create uncertainty particularly over (a) the level of demand for the
group’s products and services; and (b) the availability of bank finance for the foreseeable future. However the
group is expected to strengthen its position in digital video advertising in its existing markets and accelerate the
deployment of its digital distribution platform into the emerging markets of Eastern and Central Europe and
despite the overall uncertainty about the development of the global economy the group plans for further growth
in 2014 and beyond. These growth plans are supported by a further shift in the spending of agencies and direct
marketers from offline media to online advertising business. Adconion Media Group is well prepared due to its
diversified product offerings and the global presénce to benefit from these market trends and a global recovery.

The group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial
statements. Further information on the group’s borrowings is given in note 22.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

-Notes to the ﬁndncial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
Amended or revised standards, and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial period
beginning on 1 January 2013, but which currently do not have a material impact on the Group (although they
may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) are as follows:

o IFRS 7 (amendment) ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, (effective from 1 January 2013);

» IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement and disclosure requirements’, (effective from 1 January 2013); and

« IAS 19 (amendment) ‘Employee benefits’, (effective from 1 January 2013);

» Annual improvements 2011, (effective from 1 January 2013).

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial period beginning 1
January 2013 and not early adopted by the Group are as follows:
o IAS 39 (amendment) ‘Hedge accounting and novation of derivatives’, (effectlve from 1 January 2014);
o . IAS 36 (amendment) ‘Impairment of assets — Disclosures’, (effective from 1 January 2014);
« IAS 32 (amendment) ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’ (effective from 1 January 2014);
o IAS 27 (revised 2011) ‘Separate ﬁnanaal statements’, (effective from 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1
January 2014);
IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments — Classification and measurement’, (effective from 1 January 2015);
IFRS 7 (amendment) ‘Financial instruments —_’Disclosure’, (effective from 1 January 2015); -~
IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’, (effective from 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1 January 2014);
IFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’, (effective from 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1 January 2014);
« IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’, (effective from 1 January 2013) (endorsed 1 January
2014);

The above standards, amendments and interpretations are currently being assessed by management but are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the sum of the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the group recognises any non-controlling interest in an acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. '

Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration classified as equity is not remeasured, and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries are consistent with the pohc1es adopted by the group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is defmed as the fair value of the
consideration transferred, excluding acquisition-related costs.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the ﬁnanczal statements for the year
‘ended 31 December 2013 ( contmued)

2. Summary of significant accountmg policies (continued)

Revenue recogmtlon

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts after ehmmatlng sales within the group.

The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the group S
activities.

Revenue from online performance based advertising consist of dlsplay and video distribution; and delivery of
emails. These are calculated using a cost-per-action, cost-per-click or cost-per-thousand impressions basis.
Revenue is recognised in the period that the impressions, clicks or actions occur. Where the fees are fixed or
determinable, there are no significant company obligations remaining and the collection of the resulting
receivable is reasonably certain.

Cost of sales

_Cost of sales consists primarily of media costs. Media costs presets website publisher fees paid on a revenue
share, cost-per-lead, cost-per-click or cost—per-thousand impressions basis. Cost of sales is recognised when
the costs are incurred.
Finance cost -

Interest expense is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the interest rate

applicable.

Property, plant and equlpment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses Cost
"includes the original purchase price of the assets and the costs attributable to bringing the assets to its working
condition for its intended use. Depreciation is charged so as to write the cost less residual value over estimated
useful lives, using the straight- lme method commencing in the month following the purchase, on the following
basis: :
. Fixtures and equipment Between 3 to 15 years

" An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. )

Intangible assets

a. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in ‘intangible assets’. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains or losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating units.

b. Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired by the group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation except those
identifiable intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination which are shown at fair value at the
date of acquisition and subsequently less accumulated amortisation. Identifiable intangible assets are those
which can be sold separately or which arise from legal rights.

Amortisation is charged to the profit or loss for the financial year using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives unless such lives are judged to be indefinite.
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Adconion Media Groﬁp Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2, Summhry of significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

b. Other intangible assets (continued)

The estimated useful lives and amortisation methods for each major class of other 1ntang1ble asset are as
follows:

Customer relationships : Between 1to 10 years

Non compete agreements Between 2 to 3 years

¢. Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation.
Trademarks and licences acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
and subsequently presented less accumulated amortisation. Trademarks and licences have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 20 years.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

d. Internally generated development expenditure

The group capitalises expenditure that is directly attributable to the development of the intangible asset which
is amortised on a straight-line basis over 3 to 5 years from the point the asset is available for use. The assets are
valued at cost less accumulated amortisation. Where no intangible asset can be recognised, development ‘
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Development expenditure is
capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset.

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is recognised immediately
"as an expense. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately -
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at'each reporting date.

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations, except where fair value less cost to sell is more
representative of the maturities and growth stages of the business. Details of impairment losses are given in
note 14. :

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the present obligation at the year end date. If material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money.

Page 19 of 77



Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the ﬁnancml statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 ( contlnued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (contmued)_

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars; which the dJrectors consider is the
appropriate presentational currency of the company. The functional currency of the parent company is pound
sterling.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the company are recorded at the rates of

exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. - )

Foreign currencies (continued) '

At each statement of financial position date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Gains or losses

arising on retranslation of monetary items are included in net profit or loss for the period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Translation from functional currency to presentatlonal currency

The functional currency of the parent company is UK pounds sterling and the presentatlon currency is US
dollars. The Group’s results, financial position and cash flows are translated into the presentational currency as
follows:

_ e equity items other than net profit at the rate of transaction;

" e assets and liabilities at the closing rate; -

e income, expenses and cash flows at the average exchange rate; and

¢ resulting exchange differences are included in equity.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the-group’s statement of financial position when the
group become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

> Y
Financial assets '
The group classifies all its financial assets as Ioans and receivables that comprise of trade and other recelvables,
and cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables : ‘
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. ‘

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the group -
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and other short-term depos:ts Bank overdrafts are presented
separately in the statement of financial position in borrowmgs under current liabilities.

Financial liabilities and equlty
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a reSIdual interest in the assets of an entity after deductmg
all of its liabilities. A liability is an unavoidable obligation to pay cash or transfer other financial assets.

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Share premium includes any
premiums received on issue of share capital. Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained
profits or losses. Exchange reserves represent the movement in exchange rates on foreign operatlons
retranslated into US dollar at year end.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
‘ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and équity (continued)

Classzﬁcanon :
Financial liabilities and equlty instruments are classified accordmg to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into.

The group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: at fair value through profit or -loss and
other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose of the financial liabilities. Management
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise contingent con31derat10n arising from -
acquisition and derivatives.

All remaining financial liabilities are recognised as otherv financial liabilities. The groﬁp’s other financial
liabilities comprise of trade and other payables and borrowings. '

Financial liability presented as current liabilities if expected to be settled within 12 months, otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

)
Recognition and measurement
. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recogmsed at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss for the financial year. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the profit or
loss for the financial year within ‘other gains or loss’ — net in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs and subsequently carried at
~ amortised cost using the effective interest method. Flnanclal expense is recogmsed in profit or loss, in the group
statement of comprehensive income. :

Compound financial instruments

Loans with warrants attached are considered compound financial instruments and both the liability and equlty
elements must be separately measured. The fair value of the consideration in respect of the liability component
is measured first, by discounting the contractual stream of future cash flows (interest and principal) to the
present value, at the current rate of interest applicable to instruments of comparable credit status and terms
that does not have an equity conversion option. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The equity component (the equity conversion option) is assigned as the residual amount after deducting from
the total fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component. The equity
component is not remeasured after initial recognition, except on conversion or expiry.

" Shareholder loans are recognised as compound financial instruments.

Contingent consideration |

Accounting for contingent consideration in the post combination period is determined by the classification at
the acquisition date. Contingent consideration that is classified as an equity instrument is not remeasured. -
Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial liability is accounted for under financial instruments.

Where contingent consideration may be settled by the issue of either shares or loan notes, it is classified in the
statement of financial position in accordance with the substance of the transaction. Where the agreement gives
rise to an obligation that is settled by the delivery of either loan notes or variable numbers of shares, these
amounts are classified as financial liabilities.

Contingent consideration recognised as a financial liability is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and
each reporting date.
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Adconion Media Group Limited ‘

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Written put options

The written put option over the seller's own shares are recognised at the present value of the redemptlon
amount and accreted through finance charges in the profit or loss for the financial year over the contract period
up to the final redemption amount. The put liabilities over the non controlling interest are recognised in-equity
as the risks and rewards of the shares issued would remain with the purchaser.

Shareholder loans

The discounted value of the hablllty portion of a loan with a convertible warrant option is determined using an
effective interest rate for an equivalent loan with a non-convertible warrant option. This amount is recorded as -
a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The remainder of the .
proceeds are allocated to the conversion option. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ funds and it is
not subsequently remeasured. The interest for the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowing.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordlnary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current llablhtles if payment is due. w1tth one year
or less. :

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using.the
effective interest method.

Bank borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans are recorded at the proceeds received, which is similar to its fair value net of direct
issue costs. Proceeds received are considered to present fair value, except if otherwise indicated. Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on
an accruals basis in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.

v .
Current and deferred income tax
Current tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the year. Taxable profits differ from net profits as
reported in the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items that are taxable or deductible in

other years and items that are not taxable or deductible.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arlsmg between the tax »
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
.deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, in the country where the company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate tazable income, and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where -
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the financial statements Jor the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Share based payments
The Group operates various equity-settled and cash-settled share schemes that consist of employee share
option scheme, Share award schemes and put/call share options.

Equity-settled, share based compensation plans

a) Employee share option scheme

Equity-settled, share based compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the group. The fair value of the employee services recelved in
exchange for the grant of the options are recognised as an expense. :

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:
e including any market performance conditions; '

» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions;

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss for the financial year, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium whenthe
options are exercised.

Share based payments (contmued)

b) Share award schemes

For equity-settled share award, the fair value is calculated based on the share price at the grant date and, where -
applicable, any market vesting conditions, and expensed over the vesting period based on the number of shares
expected to vest. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where _
vesting is conditional upon a-market or non-vesting condition; which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance or service
conditions are satisfied. '

Cash-settled, share based compensation plans

For cash-settled plans, a liability is recorded, for the services received from employees that are measured at fair
value over the vesting period and the recognition of a corresponding liability at each reporting date with any
movements in fair value being recorded to the appropriate profit or loss for the financial year heading within
the operating results. Any subsequent cash flows from exercise of vested awards are recorded as a reduction of
the liability. :
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Notes to the ﬁnanczal statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Mutually exclusive awards

Both the Put/call share options and Long Term Incentive Program (‘LTIP’) are considered to be two mutually .
exclusive awards, one equity-settled and one cash-settled.

The cash-settled award, although affected by the probability of being paid, always has a fair value which is
recognised over the vesting period. If the awards are ultimately settled in equity the fair value of the liability
falls to nil. :

The equity-settled alternative is only recognised if it is considered probable. If the award is ultimately settled in
cash the equity alternative would have become improbable and so no cumulative expense would be recognised
for this. Once the contingent settlement provision resolves, the cumulative charge will represent only the
expense actually incurred under either the equity or cash settlément option.

Operating lease commitments-

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Operating leases payments net of any incentives received (including contracts
with fixed escalation clauses) from the lessor are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. :

Short-term employment benefits ’

Short-term employment benefits consist of salaries, wages and bonuses payable within twelve months of the
balance sheet date. A liability and an expense (unless capitalisation is appropriate) are recognised when an
employee has rendered services.

For short-term bonuses a liability and an expense (unless capitalisation is permitted) are recognised when the
reporting entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make payments as a result of past events and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount payable. ~
Long-term employee benefits

Long-term bonuses are accounted for as a liability when employees have provided services in exchange for
benefits to be paid in the future. The obligation is measured using the projected unit credit method and
discounted to present value. All past service costs are recognised immediately as an expense.

Segmental analysis '

The group is not required to apply IFRS 8 nor has it opted for voluntary disclosure. However the group has
opted to disclose geographical analysis information as it believes this would attribute to the information
provided in financial statements and useful to users.

Management assesses the performance of the geographical operations based on a measure of adjusted EBITDA.
This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure such as Corporate Finance and other
advisory related expenses, provision for termination and settlement and goodwill impairments when the
impairment is the result of an isolated, non-recurring event. The measure also excludes the effects of costs
associated with acquisitions, share based payments and other income or expenses. Interest income and
expenditure are not allocated to segments, as this type of act1v1ty is driven by the central treasury function,
which manages the cash position of the group.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with general accepted accounting practice requires
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well
as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
significant judgments made by management in applying the group’s accounting pohmes and the key sources of
estimation uncertainty were: : :

. a. Contingent deferred consideration

The Group has estimated the value of future acquisition consideration based on management’s estimate of the
future financial performance of the relevant entities. Assumptions include the future profit levels and
discounting to reflect the time value of money.

b. Written put options

The written put option over the seller's own shares are recognised at the present value of the redemption
amount and accreted through finance charges in the profit or loss for the financial year over the contract period .
up to the final redemption amount.

c. Fair value of share options

The fair value of share options granted in the year has been assessed using the Black Scholes Option Pricing
Model. These charges are amended to take into account changes in the number of équity instruments expected
to vest as a consequence of the changes in expectations.

d. Estimated impairment of goodwill '

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. In determining the recoverable amount of all CGUs it is necessary to make a series of
assumptions to estimate the present value of future cash flows or fair value less cost to sell. In each case, these -
key assumptions have been made by management reflecting past experience and future expectations.

The main assumptions within forecast operating cash flow include the achievement of future sales, the cost
incurred, removing non cash flow items, and the levels of ongoing capital expenditure required to support
forecast production. Similarly, determining the fair value includes the achievement of revenue forecasts and
applying multiples that supports similar online advertising companies.

e. Capitalised development costs

The group capitalise development costs, in accordance with the Group's accounting policy: Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to make assumptions and estimates regarding the expected
future cash generation of new developments and the expected period of benefits.

f.- Provisions

Estimating the provisions for onerous contracts and non- compete agreement 1nvolves uncertamtles in
determining minimum guarantees and non compliance with terms and conditions. Factors to consider in
estimating the costs include litigation procedures, budgets and forecasted results. Changes in these estimates
would impact future reported results.

g. Impairment of trade receivables

The group provides for any. amount that is estimated to be irrecoverable from customers. Each reporting entity
are responsible for calculating a specific provision based on client knowledge, trade receivables past due and
recent history of default and performance of customers.

Page 25 of 77



Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the Jinancial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

h. Amortisation of intangible assets

The amortisation and useful life of intangible asset are defined as the period over which the amortised amount
of the asset is allocated and the period over which the asset is expected to be available for use by an entity. In
assessing the useful live at each reporting period the following relevant factors are considered: the expected

. usage by the group of the asset; technical, technological, commercial and other types of obsolescence and the
period for which the entity has control of the asset and any legal use.

We assess the historical experience, contracts period, competitors and life cycle to deterrmne the useful lives of
the customer relationships and the period for which contractual and/or other legal rights are held for non
compete agreements. Legal rights for trademarks and licences are assessed over the fixed period and internally
generated development expendlture is mainly assessed against technical, technological, commercial and other
types of obsolescence.

3. Geographical analysns

The group primarily operates in one principal area of activity, that of online marketing. Geographically,
management considers the performance in the United Kingdom (UK), Continental Europe, Asia Pacific (APAC)
and North America.

The geographical information for the year ended 31 December 2013 from continuing operations is as follows:

Continental North
UK Europe APAC America Consolidation " Total

» : $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Total geographical 13,717 97,194 24,901 - 175,144 (27,290) 283,666
revenue

Inter-geographical - (593) (3,856) (118) (22,723) 27,290

. revenue . ‘ )

Revenue from 13,124 93,338 24,783 152,421 . - 283,666
external customers ‘

Adjusted EBITDA (2,562) (1,737) 485 ‘3,859 _ - 45

The geographical information for the year ended 31 December 2012 from continuing operations is as follows:

Continental North
UK Europe APAC America Consolidation Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 - $000
Total geographical 14,423 100,070 33,637 257,625 (65,590) 340,065 -
revenue _
Inter-geographical . (826) (4,611) (194) (59,959) 65,590 -
revenue
Revenue from 13,597 95,459 33,343- - 197,666 - 340,065
external customers )
Adjusted EBITDA (1,984) (1,566) 128 ' 17,537 (46) 14,069
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'Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

3. Geographical analysis (continued)

A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss for the year from continuing operations is provided as follows:

2013 2012

. $000 $000

Adjusted EBITDA 45 14,069
Corporaté finance and other advisory (3,366) (2,990)
Bonus costs associated with acquisitions (1,903) (2,982)
Depréciation and amortisation ‘ (24,827) (21,242)
Impairment of goodwill (107,940) -
- Share based payment charge _ " (12,843) (13,943)
Finance income 138 ' 168
Finance cost (10.369) (11,778)
Loss on foreign exchange (2,020) (8,410)
Other gains — net 4,884 12,473
-Other (loss)/income (908) . 611
Income tax -  (1,370) 2,481
Loss for the year from co.ntinuing operations (160,479) (31;543)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year‘
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

4. Discontinued operations

Statement of comp‘reh'énsive income from discontinued operations _

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012
$000 $000
Revenue - 69 -
Cost of sales - (212)
Gross result/profit - (143)
Administrative expenses (65) (321)
Operating loss (65) (464)
Finance income - -
Loss on ordinary activity before taxation (65) (464)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities (2) -
Loss for the financial year from discontinuing (67) . (464) -
operations : .
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 27 28
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 27 28
Total comprehensive income for the year from (40) (436)
discontinuing operations
‘Cash flow statement from discontinued operations
’ 2013 2012
$000 $000
Net cash inflow/(outfiow) from operating activities 16 . (985)
16 (985)

In December 2011, the management of the group decided to no longer pursue the business of Red Lever, Inc,

Red Lever Productions LLC, Adconion IP (Switzerland) AG and Adconion IP (International)AG.

Red Lever was acquired in October 2008 to develop products and new concepts in online video production.
Following the acquisitions in 2011, a change in strategic direction and a recent restructuring in the US, the
Group was no longer pursuing the Red Lever business model and closed both legal entities in October 2012.

‘Adconion IP (Switzerland) AG and Adconion IP (International) AG are in the process of winding the business

down.
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5. Finance income and finance cost

Finance income

2013 _ 2012

$000 - $000
Interest on short-term bank deposits 27 64
Interest on other receivables 111 - 104
Finance income from continuing operations - 138 168
Finance cost

2013 2012

$000 $000
Interest on bank overdrafts L 1,919 1,519
Interest on provision for other liabilities and éharges o 124 ' 199
Interest on long-term employee benefits 273 248
interest on borrowings . ) 607 7,714
Interest on shareholder loans 7,446 2,098
Finance cost from continuing operations ’ ) 10,369 . 11,778

6. Employee information
The average monthly numbeér of full time and part time persons (including executive directors) employed by the
group during the year was:

2013 2012
Sales and marketing » ' 404 464
- Research and deveiopment A . ' . 65 . 71
General and administration : : : . 132 144
601 679
2013 " 2012
$000 $000
- Staff costs (of the above persons)
Wages and salaries ‘ . e 61,211 69,110
Social security costs 4 . : 6,490 ' 6,754
- Long term employee benefits (note 23) : 1,903 : 2,982
Share based payments (note 26) ) 12,843 13,943

Staff costs from continuing.operations ' 82,447 92,789
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Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

7. Directors' emoluments and key management compensation

The directors' aggregate émoluments in respect of qualifying services were:

- 2013 2012
$000 $000
Total emoluments : ) 2,322 1,685

In addition, $3,574k (2012: $2,222k) was expensed in relation to the group s option schemes as share based
payments to three of the directors.

y

Emoluments of highest paid director:

2013 . 2012
$000 $000
Total emoluments ' ' » 1,072 - 999

In addition $1,769k (2012: $1,765k) was expensed for the highest paid director in relation to the group’s share
option schemes as share based payments within the statement of comprehensive i income. The hlghest paid
director did not exercise any options in 2013.

Key management compensation
Additionally there is a key management team having authority and responsibility for planning, dlrectmg, and
.controlhng an operative entity respectively busmess unit.

T T Moebius — Chief Executive Officer

P Meininger — Chief Financial Officer

B Wiseman — Global Chief Operations Officer (unt11 September 2013)
J-P Fumagalli — Chief Executive Officer, smartclip

R Schaber - Chief Operating Officer, smartclip

K Reed Perell — Chief Executive Officer, Adconion Direct

S Sullivan — Chief Technology Officer (until April 2013)

The company’s pohcy on remuneration of directors is to attract, retain and motivate the best people,
recognising the input they have to the ongoing success of the business.

Consistent with thispolicy, the benefit packages to directors and key management are intended to be
competitive. They comprise a mix of performance-related and non-performance related remuneration designed

" to incentivise directors and align their interests with those of shareholders The remuneration consists of the -
elements outlined below.

Base pay
Key managements’ base pay is designed to reflect individual’s capabilities and role within the business. Salary
levels are reviewed annually and targeted at the median position against similar industries.

Quarterly.-bonus -

All full time employees participate in the company’s quarterly bonus plan. One component of the bonus plan is
. related to Group, Company or Business Unit achievement, and one component is based on individual

performance goals. ’

Key management compensation

. _ 2013 - 2012
) ' $000 $000
Short-term employee benefits . 1,499 : 2,556
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7. Directors' emoluments and key management compensation (continued)

o

Share option scheme & LTIP

It is the board’s intention to continue to award shares to all key management members under the group’s share
option scheme. In'the event that a key management member resigns, the share options will lapse. The value of
shares notionally awarded to a director under this scheme in any year will not exceed that director’s salary.

In 2012, a new award system, the Long Term Incentive Program ("LTIP"), was established. Under the Adconion
Long Term Incentive Plan eligible employees will receive a conditional Award of Adconion Media Group
Limited shares. Awards under the Plan are not transferable and benefits under the Plan are not pensionable.

" Receipt of this Award under the LTIP is discretionary and only occurs when specified conditions and targets
have been met. Receipt of an Award in one year does not guarantee you will receive an Award in the future or

the level of any future Award. None of key management team exercised options in 2013 and 2012.

2013 2012
) . ‘ $000 $000
Key management share based compensation 1,603 1,893
8. Other gains — net
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L
’ 2013 2012
$000 $000
Fair value gain - contingent consideration arising on a business 4,827 2,902
combination
Fair value gain - embedded derivative - 9,700
Fair value gain/(loss) — warrants. A 57 (129)
Other gains ~ net from _continuing operations ¢ 4,884 12,473
9. Operating loss
2013 2012
$000 $000
Operating loss from continuing operations is stated after charging:
Depreciation on property, fixtures and equipment’ ' 2,203 1,979
Amortisation on intangible assets - 22,624 19,263
Impairment on goodwill ' 107,940 .
Loss on foreign exchange 2,020 8,410
Impairment of tr'ac_ie receivables - 713 524
Operating leases costs - land and buildings 5,711 5,738
- Auditors remuneration ‘
Audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 147 151
- The audit of company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 579 444
- Corporate finance and advisory services - 787
- Taxservices 126 134

Depreciation and amortisation expenses are charged to the administrative expenses in the statement of

comprehensive income.
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10. Income tax

2013 2012
$000 $000
Current tax:
Current tax on profit for the financial year _ - , -
Foreign tax on loss for the financial yéar . 138 ' 59
Adjustments in respect of prior years ' 48 . -
Total current tax : ) T 186 59
Deferred tax (note 11): '
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ' 955 (1,905)
Recognition of tax losses . ) (161) (977)
Adjustments in respect of prior years : 227 2
Effect of rate change 163 340
_Total deferred tax ‘ ' g 1,184 . (2,540)
Income tax credit from continuing operations . 1,370 (2,481)

The effective corporation tax for the group is calculated at 21% (2012: 23%) of the estimated assessable loss for
the year. The charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

2013 2012
$000 $000
Loss before tax from continuing operations o (159,109) (34,024)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates appllcable to losses in the respective (33,413) (8,166)
countries
Tax effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes . 22,103 1,134
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses - 55
Adjustments in respect of prior years . _ ' : 275 2
Effect of foreign tax rates . ‘ 803 (613)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised - ' : 11,439 .. 4,767
Effect of rate change f . 163 340
" Tax charge from continuing operations 1,370 (2,481)
The income tax charged directly to equity during the year is as follows: . _
2013 2012
$000 -$000
Deferred tax : . (149) -
‘ (149) -
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11. Deferred income tax

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

2013 2012
$000 - $000
Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months (355) (1,586)
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months (249) (943)
" (604) (2,529)

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months ' 8,627 9,423
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months 1,297 1,242
. 9,924 : 10,665
Deferred tax liability — net : 9,320 8,136

‘The deferred tax liability recognised in the financial statements is set out below:
2013 2012
. $000 $000
Short-term and other timing differences 9,320 8,136
' 9,320 8,136
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: A

2013 2012
$000 $000
At1January ~ 8,136 10,676
Change to the statement of comprehensive income . . 1,184 (2,540)

At 31 December ) 9,320 8,136

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of timing differences relating to revenue losses and
accelerated capital allowances, as there is insufficient evidence that the asset w111 be recovered. The amount of
the asset not recognised is: :

2013 : . 2012

$000 $000
Unrecognised deferred tax asset : 21,120 9,681

In his budget of March 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer provided for a reduction of corporation tax from
23% to 21% with effect from April 2014.

The budget proposed a decrease in the rate of UK corporation tax from 21% to 20% from April 2015. The effect
of the reduction in the tax rate to 20% on the Company’s deferred tax asset would be to reduce the value of the
unrecognised deferred tax asset. The rate change will also impact the amount of the future cash tax payment to
be made by the Company. :

The effect on the Company of these proposed changes to-the UK tax system will be reflected in the Company’s
financial statement in future years, as appropriate, once the proposals have been substantively enacted.

During the year the UK main corporation tax rate changed from 24% to 23% that was substantively enacted on
20 July 2010 and that is effective from 1 April 2012, the relevant deferred tax balances have been measured at
21%. .

Page 33 of 77



Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements fdr the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)
12. Investments in subsidiaries

Investments comprise the following:

Country of Holding Principal Acti\-lity Proportion of

Incorporation/ Place of ownership

Business interest
Directly held investments ,
Adconion UK Intermediate Holdings United Kingdom - Ordinary Holding Company 100%
Limited
Adconion UK Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smartclip Holding AG Germany Ordinary Holding Company 100%
Smartclip Mexico SAPI de CV Mexico Ordinary Digital Media 75.1%
Adconion Direct Nordics AB Sweden Ordinary Digital Media 93%
Adconion Pte Ltd.* Singapore Ordinary Non trading 100%
Indirectly (through subsidiaries)
Adconion GmbH Germany Ordinary Digital Media 100%
Adconion Media, Inc. USA Ordinary Digital Media 100%
Adconion Pty Limited _Australia Ordinary - Digital Media 100%
Adconion SARL France Ordinary Digital Media 100%
Adconion S.L. Spain Ordinary Digital Media 100%
Publead S.L. Spain Ordinary - Digital Media 100%
Arkeero Media S.L. Spain Ordinary Digital Media 100%
Adconion Direct, Inc. USA Ordinary. Digital Media 100%
Frontine Direct Australia Pty Limited *  Australia Ordinary “Non trading 100%
Adconion IP (International) AG* Switzerland Ordinary Non trading 100%
Adconion IP (Switzerland) AG Switzerland Ordinary Non trading 100%
Adconion Platform Services, LLC USA Ordinary Technology 100%
Smartclip LLC USA Ordinary ' Digital Media 100%
Fold Media, LLC* USA Ordinary Non trading 100%
Blackstar Marketing, LLC USA Ordinary - Digital Media 100%
Trabuco Media, LLC * USA Ordinary Non trading 100%
MSP Solutions, LLC USA Ordinary Digital Media 100%
CPH Ressources, LLC USA Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smartclip AG Germany Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smairtclip UK Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smartclip Hispania S.L. ‘Spain Ordinary _ Digital Media 100%
smariclip France SAS France Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smartclip Benelux B.V. The Netherlands Ordinary Digital Media 100%
srﬁartciip Nordics AB Sweden Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smartclip ltaly S.R.L. .ltaly Ordinary Digital Media 100%
smartclip Russia LLC Russia Ordinary Digital Media - 100%
Brolsten Holdings Ltd.* Cyprus Ordinary Holding Company 100%
FLC Smartclip Ltd.* Cyprus Ordinary Holding Company 100%

Each subsidiary has been included in the consqlidation. Dormant companies are identified by *.
hiClip GmbH was merged with Adconion GmbH in 2013.
JAK Technologies, LLC was placed into members’ voluntary liquidation and dissolved in 2013.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures and

equipment
$000
Cost
At 1 January 2012 9,502
Additions 2,605
Disposals (302)
Exbhange differences 105
At 31 December 2012 11,910
Additions 539
: Diéposals (228)
Exchange differences (35)
At 31 December 2013 12,186
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 4,467
Charge for the year 1,986
Disposals L
Exchange differences 41
. At 31 December 2012 6,487
Charge for the year 2,203
Disposals (207)
Exchange differences (16) .
At 31 December 2013 8,467
Net book value - i
At 31 December 2013 3,719
At 31 December 2012 5,423
- At 1 January 2012 5,035

Accumulated depreciation charge for the year includes discontinued operation charges of $nil (2012: $7k).’
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i4. Intangiblé assets

' Non internally
Customers compete  yrademarks  generated
Goodwill relationships agreements 54 licenses development . Total
$000 . $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Cost

At 1 January 2012 177,440 33,214 1,702 20,735 50,361 283,452
" Additions - - : 1,139 6,452 " 7,591

Disposals - - - (337) - (337)
. Excﬁahge differences 6,771 600 11 237 - 485 8,104

At 31 December 2012 184,211 33,814 1,713 21,774 57,298 298,810

Additions | 101 - - 1,691 8,320 10,112 .

Disposals - - - (63) - (63)

Exchange differences - 2,809 1,468 29 550 471 5,327

At 31 December 2013 187,121 35,282 1,742 23,952 66,089 314,186

Aécumulated amortisation

and impairment :

At 1 January 2012 22,815 1,668 838 4,749 21,695 51,765

Amortisation charge for the . ‘

year . - 3,395 344 5,420 10,104 19,263

Exchange.differences ‘ 926 93 - 6 40 403 1,468

At 31 December 2012 23,741 ‘5,156 ' 1,188 10,209 32,202 72,496

Amortisation charge for the :

year - 3,266 351 2,278 16,729 22,624

Impairment 107,940 - - - - - 107,940

Disposals ’ - - - (21) - (21

Exchange differences 1 ,433> 297 19 116 289 2,154

At 31 December 2013 133,114 8,719 1,558 12,582 49,220 205,193

Net book value

At 31 December 2013 54,007 26,563 184 11,370 16,869 108,993

At 31 December 2012 160,470 28,658 525 11,565 - 25,096 226,314

At1January 2012~ 154,625 31,546 864 15,986 28,666 231,687

Goodwill brought forward arose following the acquisitions of Frontline Direct, Inc., Blackstar Marketing, LLC

and Smartclip Holding AG. |
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.14. Intangible assets (continued) |

‘Goodwill brought forward arose following the acquisitions of Frontline Direct, Inc., Blackstar Marketing, LLC
and Smartclip Holding AG.

Goodwill allocated to the following CGU entities

2013 2012

: _ $000 , - $000

smartclip group . . 32,270 129,046
Frontline Direct group* ] v 21,737 31,424

54,007 160,470

*Combined CGU of Frontline Direct and Blackstar

Goodwill allocated to the following CGU entities (continued)
The goodwill arising on the acquisitions of smartclip Holding AG and trade and assets of Blackstar Media, LLC
in 2011 and of Frontline Direct, Inc. in 2008 represent the balance as at 31 December 2013.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill was allocated to the groups’ cash-generating unlts (CGUs) for the purpose of nnpaxrment testing.
Currently all CGUs allocatéed to goodwill were defined as the acquired sub51d1ar1es or assets arid trade of
acquired businesses.

The recoverable amounts of the smartclip group and the Frontline Direct group CGUs have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial

- budgets approved by managemeént covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the planning period were
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. Within these calculations management have
incorporated the economic circumstances within each geographical analysis in their assessment of goodwill
impairment.

Management has determined that the recoverable amount allocated to the smartclip group CGU had been
impaired by $99.1m as a consequence of the impairment test results and the trading performance in the
underlying business. Also the recoverable amount allocated to the Blackstar unit within the Frontline Direct
group CGU has been fully impaired by $9.8m as the assets acquired no longer generate cash for the group.

In 2013 and 2012, for value-in-use calculations a weighted average growth rate of 3% and a pre-tax discount
rate of 13.5% were used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the planning period. The weighted average growth rate
used was consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rate used was pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

Sensitivity analysis A

The value-in-use calculations for the smartclip CGU were highly sensitive to changes in the assumptions. If the
cash generated had been 10% lower as planned, the group would have recognised an impairment of goodwill of
$104.3m.

15. Business combination

Telic Ventures, Inc :

On 11 September 2013 the group acquired Tehc Ventures, Inc.'s busmess of distributing third-party email
advertising campaigns to email recipients through proprietary and non—propmetary email.

The terms of the acqulsltlon provide that the consideration will be settled in upfront cash and contingent earn-
out payments.

This transaction has been accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting.
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15. Business combination (continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid and the fair value of assets acquired at the accjuisition

- date.

) Fair value Fair
Book value adjustments value
$000 $000 $000
Internally developed software : . - 1,220 1,220
Other intangible assets : 60 - 60
‘ 60 1,220 1,280
Goodwill 101
Purchase consideration L 1,381

Satisfied by:
Cash 100
Contingent consideration (note 17 and 18) 1,281
1,381

Acquisition related costs have been charged to adm1mstrat1ve expenses in the consohdated statement of

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Contingent consideration is being settled in cash, in accordance with the acquisition agreement. Associated .
“with the deferred contingent consideration are performance criteria based the adJusted gross contribution for

the financial years ending 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that the group could be required to make under the

consideration arrangement is between nil and $5,000k.

The fair value of the deferred contingent consideration arrangement of $1 281k was estimated by applying the .
income approach. The fair value estimates are based on a discount rate of 7. 04% and are charged to transaction

con31derat10n in the statement of financial position.
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16. Financial instruments by category

2013 2012
» $000 $000
Assets as per statement of financial position:
Loans and receivable
Trades and other receivables excluding non financial assets 81,616 87,241
Cash and cash equivalents, net of bank overdrafts (6,311) (1,773)
75,305 85,468
Liabilities as per statement of financial position:
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L © 1,378 6,119
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings excluding bank overdraft 81,083 45,768
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities - 77,420 80,062
158,503 125,830
17.  Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L
2013 . 2012
$000 $000
Liabilities as per statement of financial position: -
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L
Contingent consideration arising on a business combination 1,304 5,990
Warrants issued 74 129
1,378 6,119
Less non-current portion
Warrants issued 74) (129)
Contingent consideration arising on a business combination (1,304) (2,951)
- 3,039

Current portion

Contingent consideration arising on a business combination

As part of the transaction consideration for the acquired assets and trade of Blackstar Media, LLC a contingent

consideration is being settled through a mixture of equity and cash, in accordance with the acquisition

agreements. Associated with the contingent consideration are performance criteria based on Blackstar’s and

Adconion Direct’s combined adjusted EBITDA for the financial years ending 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2013. The consideration was settled in 2013.

As part of the transaction consideration for the acquired assets of Telic Ventures, Inc. a contingent

consideration is being settled through cash, in accordance with the acquisition agreements. Associated with the
contingent consideration are performance criteria based on the Gross Contribution for the financial years

ending 31 December 2014 and 31 December-2015.

Warrants zssued

Warrants were issued as part of the loan agreement between Adconion UK Ltd and Silicon Valley Bank, dated

02 March 2010.
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18. Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The group’s financial
liabilities carried at fair value are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (fair value is based on
appropriate valuation techniques using non-market observable inputs).

The following table presents the group's liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2013.

$000

Financial liabilities at fair value throughthe P&L
Warrants issued 74
Contingent consideration arising on a business combination 1,304
’ 1,378

The following table presents the group’s liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012.

' : . $000

Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L
Warrants issued 129
Contingent consideration arising on a business combination 5,990
6,119

There were no transfers between levels duﬁng the year.

The gi”oup’s finance department includes a team that performs the valuations of contingent consideration and
warrants required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to
the chief financial officer (CFO) and the audit committee (AC)."

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at least
once every quarter, in line with the group’s quarterly reporting dates.

Reconciliation for the fair value estimation

Contingent consideration Warrants Embedded derivative Total
arising on a business " issued $000 arising on a business $000

~ combination combination

$000 $000
At 1 January 2012 : 8,891 - . 9,370 18,261
Additions - 129 - 129
Fair value loss (2,902) - (9,700) (12,602)
Exchange differences ‘ ’ 1 - 330 331
At 31 December 2012 ' 5,990 129 - 6,119
Additions _ 1,304 - - 1,304
Fair value loss (4,827) (57) - {4,884)
Payments (1,163) - - (1,163)
Exchange differences - - 2 - 2
At 31 December 2013 ' 1,304 74 - 1,378
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19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the fo_llowing for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

2013 2012

» $000 $000

Cash and cash equivalents ) _ . 18,718 22,629
Bank overdrafts (note 21) ' . '(25,(_)29) (24,402) -

' : ‘ (6,311) (1,773)

20. Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

, $000 $000

Trade receivables ' 78,280 : 84,392

Less: provision for impairment of trade receivable ' (1,070) - (920)

} _'Trade‘receivables net 77,210 : 83,472

‘Other receivables . - 4,406 3,769

Other taxation and social security costs v 8,221 15,162

Prepayments and accrued income 5,016 " 6,083

94,853 108,486

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. .

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2013 2012

. , ‘ $000 .. $000

Up to 3 months past que 27,848 24,988
More than 3 months past due . . ’ ' 12,589 . 9,236
40,437 34,224

Individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult economic
situations. ’ '

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Group IR 2013 2012

_ » $000 $000
At1 January . 920 , 845
Us'ed‘ during the year : ’ (713) , (524).
Additions - . 863 ‘ 599
At 31 December : ’ : ' - 1,070 ' 920
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21. Trade and other payables

2013 2012.
$000 $000.
Trade payables 40,013 38,441
Other taxation and social security costs 7,762 . 16,706
Other payables 3,555 3,015
Accruals 33,852 38,606
85,182 96,768
22. Borrowings
Notes 2013 2012
_ ' $000 $000
Bank and other loans 4,803 7,357
Promissory'notes from settlement of the put option ‘ 3,279 -
Deferred consideration from settlement of the put option 7,194 -
Deferred consideration from acquisition 2,657 2_,377
Written put options - 916
Shareholder loans 63,150 35,118
Bank overdratft 18 25,029 24,402
1’06,112 70,170
Less non-current portion
Bank and other loan (75) (4,821)
Promissory notes from settlement of the put option (1,600) -
Deferred consideration from settlement of the put option (5,594) -
Deferred consideration from acquisition (1,286) (2,377)
Shareholder loans (60,733) {34,301)
Current portion 36,824 28,671

Bank and other loans consist of:

The Silicon Valley Bank loan facilities are repayable in quarterly instalments over 4 years. Interest is payable
quarterly at a rate equal to the US dollar LIBOR interest rates plus 5.75% per annum.

The Bank Santander loan facility was issued in J anuary 2012 and is repayable monthly over 3 years. Interest is

payable monthly at a rate of 6% per annum.

Repayments of bank and other loans during the year amounted to $2,563k (2012 $2,523k). The fa1r value of

bank and other loans equals its carrying amount.
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22, Borrowings (contmued)

. Promissory notes and deferred consideration from settlement of the put option

In 2008, the group issued 25% of the share capital to the initial founders of the Adconion business in Spain
with a call option to buy back the shares or convert into new share at a future point in time. The minority
shareholders also have a put option to sell their 25% ownership stake back to,the group for cash during 2013.
The terms of the agreement included a service condition as the minority shareholders need to be employed as at
exercise and up unt11 31 December 2013. The value at'which the option can be exercised is based on a multiple
of the EBITDA of the Spanish business in the four quarters preceding exercise. The option is considered to be
two mutually exclusive awards, one equity-settled and one cash-settled. The corresponding expense was
recognised in statement of comprehensive income within ’share based payment expense’.

The minority shareholders have exercised their put option in July 2013 and sold their 25% ownershlp stake
back to the group for a combination of cash, shares in the group and promissory notes.

The group issued promissory notes of $3,035k to the minority shareholders. Interest is payable quarterly at
10% per annum. The notes will be repaid until June 2015. The fair value of promissory notes equals its carrying
amount. :

2013 2012
Promissory notes $000 _ $000
Opening amount 1 January ' - - -
Proceeds from borrowings . 3,035 -
Accrued interest . . . = . . 156 .
Interest paid (80) -
Exchange differences 168 -
Liability at 31 December 3,279 : -

Deferred consideration from the put option is being settled through a mixture of equity and cash until J une
2015. Non cash proceeds from borrowings during 2013 amounted to $7,194k and the fair value of the deferred
consideration equals its carrying amount.

Deferred consideration from acqu1s1t10n

Deferred consideration from acquisition is being settled through a mixture of equity and cash in accordance
with the acquisition agreements, Non cash proceeds from borrowings during 2011 amounted to $2,266k and
the fair value of the deferred consideration was calculated using a market interest rate for an equlvalent debt
instrument.

Written put option :

The potential cash payments related to put optlons issued by the group to repurchase shares are initially
recognised at fair value within borrowings with a corresponding charge directly to equity. Such options are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order to accrete the
liability up to the amount payable under the option at the date at which it first becomes exercisable. The charge
arising is recorded as a financing cost. The option expired unexercised and the liability was derecognised with a
corresponding adJustment to equity.

Non cash proceeds from borrowings during 2011 amounted to $1,895k and derecognition (including mterest) of
$882k during:2013 (2012 $1,064Kk). The fair values of the wntten put option were calculated using a market
interest rate for an equivalent debt instrument.
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‘22, Borrowings (continued)

Shareholder loans

2013 2012

$000 $000
Opening amount 1 Jahuary _ ’ . 35,118 25,928
Repayment of shareholder loans _ ) (817) -
Proceeds from shareholder loans issued . , : 20,343 6,001
Interest paid ‘ (95) (118)
Accrued interest ' : ' 7435 - 2,141
Exchange differences 1,166 1,166
Liability at 31 December ' 63,150 I 35,118
Less non-current portion o E 1(60,733) (34,301) .
Current portion ' - ‘ 2,417 817

Shareholder loans were issued by the parent company to raise finance for the group in the years 2009, 2011,
2012 and 2013. Cash flow proceeds from borrowings during 2013 amounted to $20,343k (2012: $5,977Kk).

© 2009 - shareholder loans
The shareholder loans with warrants issued in 2009 are from 5 year loan notes. Interest is payable at a rate of
3% per annum payable on the redemption date. ‘

Associated with the shareholder loans were warrants granting the right to acquire C ordinary shares of the
company. On 29 May 2013, the shareholder loan agreements were amended. Interest is payable at a rate of 8%
per annum after 30 June 2014 payable on the redemption date. The redemption:date will be on the first to
occur of 30 June 2015 or an exit event as defined in the agreements.

_ 2012 — shareholder loans

On 4 June 2013 and on 20 June 2013, the shareholder loan agreements for the loans with warrants‘issued in
2011 were amended. The loans are repayable in quarterly instalments starting in October 2014. Interest is
payable at rates between 5% and 10% per annum payable at the relevant redemption dates. Associated with the
shareholder loans were warrants granting the right to acquire C ordinary shares of the company.

The shareholder loans with warrants issued in 2012 are repayable after 3 years. Interest is payable at a rate of
5% per annum payable on the redemption date. Associated with the shareholder loans were warrants granting
the right to acquire C ordinary shares of the company.

2013 — shareholder loans
Three sets of shareholder loans were issued in 2013, all notes are repayable after 3 years:

a) Interest will accrue on the notes at the rate of 20% per annum, and is payable at Libor plus 2%
quarterly and the remainder on redemption of the relevant notes. The loan notes will be redeemable at
their principal amount.

b) Interest will accrue on the notes at the rate of 22% per annum, and is payable on redemptlon of the
relevant notes. The loan notes will be redeemable at their principal amount.

¢) No interest will accrue on the notes. The loan notes will be redeemable at 2.2 times the principal
amount,

The fair value of the liability component of the shareholder loans was calculated using a market interest rate for
an equivalent debt instrument. The residual amount, representing the value of the warrants, is included in
shareholders’ equity in other ] reserves. The value of the liability component and the equlty component were -
determined at the issuance of the instruments.
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22, Borfowings (continuéd)

VShareholder loans (continued)

2013 2012
Shareholder loans with warrants : , $000 $000
Face value : 54,178 33,864
Equity component ‘ (383) (803)
Share premium : (3,118) (2,697)
Exchange differences 1,401 1,117
Liability componeni _ ) 52,078 31,481
Accrued interest 11,072 3,637
Liability at 31 December ' 4 63,150 35,118
Bank overdrafts
The bank overdrafts are primarily secured on company’s trade receivables balances.
23. Longterm gmployee beneﬁté
2013 2012
$000 $000
Opening amount 1 January _ ‘ . 14,898 1,745
Service cost for the year . 1,903 2,982
Payments ) ' (2,745) -
Reclassification from retained earnings 4,630 -
- Accrued interest ' : 273 117
Exchange differences : _ ) ' 196 - 54
Liability at 31 December N 9,155 4,898
Less non-current portion - — (3,639) (3,081)
Current portion ‘ ' ’ 5,516 1,817

Long-term bonus schemes related to the acquisition of Blackstar Marketing, LLC

The group operates long-term bonus schemes, whereby employees receive bonus payments of up to $5,000k for
services from acquisition date until 31 December 2013. Associated with the bonus payments are performance
criteria based on Blackstar’s and Adconion Direct’s combined adjusted EBITDA for the financial years ending

- 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013. No bonus payments became payable as the performance criteria

were not met.

The lability for the bonus payments was recognised at fair value using a discount rate of 7:43% and was build
up over the service period. The service cost was the present value of the benefits attributed to the current year.

Long-term bonus schemes related to the acquisition of the smartclip group

* The group operates long-term bonus schemes, whereby employees receive bonus payments of up to $9,155k for

services from acquisition date until 31 December 2014. Certain bonus payments are associated with
performance criteria for the financial years ending 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014. The bonus
payments will be settled in cash, in accordance with the bonus agreements.

: /

The liability for the bonus payments is recognised at fair value using a discount rate of 7.79% and is build up

over the service period. The service cost is the present value of the benefits attributed to the current year.
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23. Long term employee benefits (continued)

.As part of the acquisition of smartclip Holding AG, shares were issued as part of transaction consideration with
condition of future employment that are not considered part of IFRS 3 (R) transaction consideration but
instead presented as post combination employee services. Payments that are for employee services are post-
combination remuneration expenses that will be charged to the combined group’s loss for the financial year in
accordance with IFRS 2, ' Share based payments'.

This share consideration was classified as-an equity settled share based payment transaction. The fair value of
the services was measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted as consideration
estimated. The impact on the results for the year 2013 was US$2,065k (2012: US$ 2,811K).

At-31 December 2013, this liability amounting to US$4,630k was reclassified to employee benefits as the terms
and conditions for payments in shares were not met. Settlement will be in cash.

24. Provision for other liabilities and charges

Onerous contracts Legal obligations Contingent Total
$000 $000 . consideration $000

. . arising on a

business

combination

. $000
At 1 January 2012 1,855 2,931 - 501 5,287
Charge for the year - - - -
Payments (1,902) : (1,286) (501) . (3,689)
Interest . - © 190 - 190
Exchange differences 47 31 - 78
At 31 December 2012 - " 1,866 - 1,866
Less non-current portion - (547) - (547)
Current portion - © 1,319 - 1,319
Charge for the year ' - ' - - -
- Payments - (1,322) . - (1,322)
Interest - ' 100 . . 100

Exchange differences : - 27 ‘ - 27

At 31 December 2013 - 671 , .- 671
Less non-current portion - - , __— -
Current portion 7 - - 671 - \ 671

LegaI obligations

A historical non-compete agreement was in place w1th a partner, under which the group was not permitted to
trade in Eastern Europe. The acquisition of smartclip, which trades in Russia, triggered a breach of the contract.
The parties have agreed to terminate the contract and the group will pay $2,931k as a compensanon payment
over 10 quarters.
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25. Commltments under operatmg ]eases

The group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are
between 1 and 7 years, and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period at
market rates. The operating lease expense charged to the loss for the financial year during the year is dlsclosed

in note 9.

The future aggregate lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as leloWs: .

2013 2012
$000 $000
Operating leases which expire: ) '
Within one year ’ ' ) . 4,902 5,630
A Between one and five years ' ’ E 12,923 17,728
After more than five years ' ‘ ‘ _ 181 4,288
27,646

18,006
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26. Share based compensation

Long term employee

Share based payment

benefits
$000 . Note Cash settled Cash settled Equity settled
_ C * (Liabitity) (Liability) (Equity)
Employee share option scheme 11,408
Contingent deferred consideration 22 9,155
Long Term incentive Plan 10,976
At 31 December 2013 9,155 10,976 11,408
Less non-current portion ' (3,639) (10,976)
Current portion 5,516 -

a) Employee share option scheme

The group has a share option scheme for all employees (mcludmg directors) within the group. Options are
exercisable at a price equal to the average market price of the company’s shares on the date of grant. The
vesting period is between one and four years. The Weighted Average Exercise Price (WAEP) has also been

disclosed for all movements in the number of share options during the year.

2013 2012
WAEP WAEP
Number $ Number $
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,128,936 2.97 6,782,144 2.78
Granted during the year (strike price of 25,000 6.02 134,500 8.72
_ shares)
Exercised during the year (1 95,832) 1.49 (149,427) 1.95
Forfeited during the year (611,007) 5.98 (638,281) 3.32
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,347,097 2.79 6,128,936 3.02
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,985,682 . 2.56 4,999,877 2.30
- Options outstanding at 31 December 2013 comprise the following:
Expiry date ‘Exercise 2013* 2012
pricein $ Number Number
31 December 2015 0.08 827,940 - 940,440
31 December 2016 0.77 254,225 327,911
31 December 2017 . 1.29 1,967,457 ' 2,109,491
31 December 2018 4.37 362,302 439,930
31 December 2019 4.47 685,063 766,000
31 December 2020 4.93 635,144 706,042
31 December 2021 6.89 548,466 716,622
31 December 2022 9.07 41,500 122,500
31 December 2023 6.35 25,000
5,347,097 6,128,936

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was $1.50 (2012 $2.97). The weighted average
share price during the year for options exercised over the year was $1.49 (2012 $1.89). The total charge for the
year relating to employee share based payment plans from continuous operations was $748k (2012 $966k) all
of which related to equity settled share base payments transactions. ’
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26. Share based compensation (continued) -

a) Employee share option scheme (continued)
The fair value per option granted was détermined usmg the Black Scholes Option Pricing model with the
following assumptions used in the calculation:

: 2013 2012
Weighted average share price - $ : 6.02 -8.72
Weighted average exercise price - $ ' 6.02 8.72
Expected volatilty - % | 25.22 38.11
Expected life ~ years _ , 5.00 . 5.00
Risk free rate - % ‘ : 1.00 1.00
Expected dividend yield - % 0.00 0.00

Risk free rate
The risk free rate of 1% was determined using a government bond as a proxy that equates a 5 year expected
lifetime.

Expected dividend yield
The directors do not currently forecast any dividends and hence a yield of 0% has been used.

Expected volatility
In general the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model was used to calculate the fair market value The volatility of
the stock price is calculated over 24 months.

Expected term
A best estimate of 5 years has been selected by the directors based on hlstoncal performance and the current
growth rate of the group

b) Share award scheme

As part of the acquisition of smartclip Holding AG and trade and assets of Blackstar Media, LLC, shares were
issued as part of transaction consideration with condition of future employment that are not considered part of
IFRS 3 (R) transaction consideration but instead presented as post combination employee services. Payments
that are for employee services are post-combination remuneration expenses that will be charged to the
combined group’s loss for the financial year in accordance with IFRS 2, ' Share based payments'.

For both acquisitions similar terms and conditions exist of contingent payments payable in shares at future date
and dependent on future employment. Contingent payments are payable in shares at a future date and are
dependent on future employment. The bonus payment for smartclip Holdlng AG consisted of two payments
payable December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014.

This share consideration was classified as an equity settled share based payment transaction. Share based
payment transactions in which the entity receives services as consideration for its own equity instruments
(including shares or share options). The fair value of the services was measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments granted as consideration estimated. The impact on the results for the year 2013 was a
decrease of US$3,593k (2012: credit of US$2,811k).

¢) Put/call share options

The minority shareholders have exerc1sed their put option in July 2013 and sold their 25% ownership stake
back to the group for a combination of cash, shares in the group and promissory notes. The impact on the
‘equity instruments granted results in a decrease of US$1,976k for the year 2013 (2012: credit of US$853Kk).

d) Long Term Incentive Program ("LTIP")

In 2012, a new award system, the Long Term Incentive Program ("LTIP"), was established. Under the Adconion

Long Term Incentive Plan eligible employees will receive a conditional Award of Adconion Media Group
Limited shares.
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€) Long Term Incentive Program ("LTIP") (continued)

The vesting of the Award is generally conditional on remaining employed over a three-year period and on the
satisfaction of certain conditions. Awards under the Plan are not transferable and benefits under the Plan are
not pensionable. Receipt of this Award under the LTIP is discretionary and only occurs when specified
conditions and targets have been met. Receipt of an Award in one year does not guarantee to receive an Award
in the future or the level of any future Award. :

As above, the LTIP is considered to be two mutually exclusive awards, one equity-settled and one cash-settled.
The current estimate of the equity-settled value is $nil (2012: $nil); and the fair value of the cash-settled award
is $10,976k (2012: $4,326Kk), with a cumulative corresponding expense impact of $6,650k (2012: $4,326k) in
statement of comprehensive income within ‘share based payment expenses’. .

27. Called up share capital

2013 2012

Allotted and called up: : Number $ Number - $

" Ordinary shares of £0.01 each 30,377,056 555,149 29,746,432 545998
A ordinary shares of £0.01 each 2,467,170 48,541 . 2,467,170 48,541
B ordinary shares of £0.01 each : 1,400,000 A 27,544 . 1,400,000 27,544
C ordinary shares of £0.01 eaéh 15,355,045 281,211 14,449,517 266,967

D ordinary shares of £0.01 each 11,441,053 184,685 11,441,053 184,685
Preference shares of £0.01 each 2,593,750 51,031 2,593,750 51 ,031
63,634,074 1,148,161 62,097,922 - 1,124,766

All shares issued by the group were fully paid. In 2013, 195,832 ordinary shares of £0.01 each were issued to
meet share option agreements (strike prices between £0.07 and £5.50), 905,528 C ordinary shares of £0.01
each were issued to existing shareholders upon exercise of warrants at an exercise price of £0.01 and 434,792
ordinary shares were issued to fulfil earn out obligations from acquisitions at a subscription price of £3.85.

The related premium arising on each issue of ordinary shares has been transferred to the share premium
account. There are no differences in terms of voting rights associated with the six different classes of shares.
The preference shareholders are not entitled to receive a distribution of profits. D ordinary shareholders are
ranked highest in order of preference on wmdlng up, C ordinary shareholders are second in line, preference
shareholders are third in-line with the remaining shareholders ranked equally :

Reconcﬂlatlon of ordinary and preference shares

Ordinary A ordinary B ordinary C ordinary D ordinary Preference

shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of
£0.01 each £0.01 each £0.01 each £0.01 each £0.01 each £0.01 each
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 31 December 2011 534,783 48,541 27,544 264,116 - 51,031
Share issued during 11,215 - - 2,851 - . -
the year .
Shares issued as part - e . ' - 184,685 -
of the acquisitions )
At 31 December 2012 545,998 48,541 - 27,544 266,967 184,685 51,031
Shares issued dunng 2,842 . - 14,244
the year '
Shares issued as part 6,309
of the acquisitions ,
At 31 December 2013 555;149 48,541 27,544 281,211 184,685 51,031
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28. Share premium account

2013 2012

$000 $000
Balance brought forward ' 269,310 161,296
Premium on shares issued in the year _ ) 4,308 108,014
Balance carried forward ] 273,618 269,310
29. Cash generatéd from operations
2013 2012
$000 $000
Loss on ordinary activities before taxanon from (159,109) (34,024)
continuing operations |
Finance income ' (138) (168)
Finance cost ' . ' 10,369 11,778
Other gains - net (4,884) (12,473)
Depreciation on fixtures and equipment ' 2,203 1,979
Amortjsation on intangible assets ' - ) ‘ ‘ 22,624 19,263
: Impairmeni on goodwill . ) 107,940 . -
Provision for liabilities and charges (1,222) (3,689)
Share based payment expense for the year . 7 4 ) 12,843 13,943
Long-term employee bonus expenses - 1,903 2,982
Unrealised foreign exchange losses: . (146) 7,639
Increase / (decrease) in receivables : 13,557 (6,601)
(Increase) / decrease in payables : (13,194) . = 7,427
Cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities from ’ (7,254) 7,956

continuing operations

30. Related party transactions

Group relationships

All inter group transactions (including management fee and interest), loans and trading balances, which are
related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and excluded for disclosure. Refer note 12 for
Investment in subsidiaries. :

Shareholder loans
Shareholder loans were issued by the parent company to raise finance for the group in the years 2009, 2011,
2012 and 2013. Refer note 22 for detail.

Key management

Adconion Direct, Inc. and Adconion Pty Ltd. traded with Telic Interactive, a company 50% owned by K Reed
Perell until 11 September 2013, to the amount of $2,679k in 2013. Trade recéivables due from Telic Interactive
were $211k at 11 September 2013.

Similar, Telic Interactive, provided services to Adconion Direct, Inc. in the amount of $3,781k in 2012. Trade
payables due to Telic Interactive were $492K at 11 September 2013.

All transactions within Adconion Media Group are carried out at arms length.
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31. Financial risk management

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (group treasury). Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the group’s operating units.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The group’s principal foreign currency exposures arise from purchases from overseas companies and sales to
overseas customers. As there are local entltles in all major markets only a small percentage of the group’s sales
are to foreign companies.

In addition to this, Adconion Media Group advances intercompany loans to its’ operating entities denominated
in Sterling. While there is no effect on group level, currency fluctuations might result in significant adjustments
on local level. '

Foreign exchange risk (contmued)

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of foreign currency borrowings (including promissory notes
issued to the initial founders of the Adconion business in Spain and deferred consideration from the acquisition
of smartclip) during the current year are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from bank overdrafts and shareholders’ loans. The group manages its
interest rate risk by regularly reviewing its existing position, refinancing or alternative financing to ensure the
group seeks to borrow at competitive rates. The group also calculates the impact on loss in the statement of
comprehensive income of a defined interest rate shift.

The group’s main exposure to interest rate risk arises from the Silicon Valley Bank loan.

Market risk sensitivity analysis
The following analysis is intended to illustrate the sensitivity of the Group’s financial instruments (at 31
December) to changes in interest rates and foreign currencies. The group is using a sensitivity analysis
technique that measures the estimated impacts on the consolidated loss for the financial year and other *
comprehensive income of either an instantaneous increase or decrease of 0.5% (50 basis points) in market
interest rates or a 10% strengthening or weakening in US dollars against all other currencies, from the rates
applicable at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, for each class of financial instruments with all other
variables remaining constant. '

The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of market risks on corporate tax payable. This analysis is for
illustrative purposes only, as in practice interest and foreign exchange rates rarely change in isolation.

The sensitivity analysis is based on the following:

e Alllosses for the financial year sensitivities also impact equity.

e  Changes in interest rates affect the finance income or expense of variable interest financial instruments,
financial instruments with fixed interest rates if these are recognised at fair value and no impact for
financial instruments carried at amortised cost, carrying value does not change as interest rates move.

e  Changes in the fair values of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are estimated by
discounting the future cash flows to net present values using rates prevailing at the year end for contingent
considerations using the Black Scholes model by computing the outstanding payable with inputs linked to
foreign exchange and interest rates.

*  No sensitivity is provided for cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables as these are considered
current and present fair value and initial recogmtlon and subsequent amortised costs and not susceptible
to further rate changes.

¢ . Translation of foreign subsidiaries and operatlons into the Group’s presentation currency has been
presented separately from transaction considerations. .
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

Other markKet risk Interest rate Foreign exchange risk

Reflected in loss Reflected in loss Reflected in other
: . comprehensive income

Favourable  Unfavourable Favourablé Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
changes changes changes changes changes $000 changes
$000 $000 - $000 . $000 $000
Silicon Valley Bank - - : 36 (36) - 738 - (738)
Loans Co N .
Deferred consideration ‘ - - - - 238 . (238)
Written put options - . R - - 90 (90)
Contingent ' 599 (599) . . 599 (599)
consideration arising :
on a business
combination o
At 31 December 2012 599 (599) 36 (36) 1,665 . (1 ,665)

f

Market risk sensitivity analysis (continued)

‘Other market risk . ___Interest rate Foreign exchange risk

Reflected in Ioés Reflected in loss Reflected in other

- comprehensive income

Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable

changes changes changes changes "~ changes changes

. $000 $000 $000 : $000 $000 $000

Silicon Valley Bank - - 24 . (24) . 473 (473)

Loans o

Deferred consideration - - - . - ', 266 (266)

Promissory notes - - - - ' 327 T (327)
2014/2015 _ . : . )

At 31 December 2013 - - 24 (24) 1,066 (1,066)

Management assessed their market risks exposure as limited with no material effect during the year ended 31
December 2013. .
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31. Financial risk managemeht (continued)

Translation of foreign subsidiaries and operations

A 10% change in the exchange of the US dollar against the following currencies would create an
increase/(decrease) in our loss and/or in our equity as shown below. This analysis is based on the foreign
currency exchange rate variances that we considered to be reasonably possible at the reporting date. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, such as interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of
forecasted sales and purchases. This analysis is shown on the same basis for 2012 and 2013, though the

_ reasonably possible foreign exchange rate variances were different, as 1nd1cated below:

Foreign exchange risk

Reflected in loss . Reflected in other comprehensive

' income

Favourabie Unfavourable Favourable ~ Unfavourable

changes changes changes changes

$000 $000 $000 $000

Continental Europe 157 ' (157) - . 2,059 (2,059)
APAC o (13) . 13 . 257 (257)
UK - ‘ 198 ' .(198) 23,608 : (23,608)
At 31 December 2012 ' ' 342 (342) 25,924 (25,924)
Continental Europe - 180 (180) 833 - (833)
APAC (49) 49 201 - (201)
UK ' 254 (254) 22,764 o (22,764)

At 31 December 2013 A - 385 (385) 23,798 (23,798)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis, except for credit risk relating to accounts receivable balances. Each local
entity is responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients before standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions. - :

For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a high credit-rating are accepted. If
wholesale customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. If there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account 1ts financial position, past experience
and other factors.

The group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and clients. Refer note 20 trade and other receivables for further detail on credit risk analysis
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk
Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the group and aggregated by group finance.

. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meét operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities
at all times so that the group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its
borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the group’s debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory or legal
requ1rements — for example, currency restrictions.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above balance required for working capital management
are transferred to the group treasury. Group treasury invests surplus cash in interest bearing current financial
statements, time deposits, money market deposits and marketable securities, choosing instruments with
appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient head-room as determined by the above-
mentioned forecasts. At the reporting date, the group held cash and cash equivalents excluding bank overdrafts
of $18,708k (2012: $22,629k) that are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the group’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 Between 2
months months and 1 and 2 years and 5 years

'$000 year $000 $000
$000 .

At 31 December 2013
Trade and other payables excludmg non financial 77,420 . - - -
liabilities . .
Bank overdrafts ' ‘26,020 . , - - -
Shareholder loans . . - 1,654 26,‘994 26,579
Borrowings - 1,469 7,919 8,635 -
Financial liabilities through'the P&L . - - . 1,485 -

103,918 9,573 37,114 26,579
At 31 December 2012
Trade and other payables excluding non financial 80,062 - - -
liabilities _ _ :
Bank overdrafts 24,402 oo- - -
Shareholder loans ' - ' 793 - 14,852 19,297
Borrowings ' ’ 625 2,791 3,821 3,509
Financial liabilities through the P&L . 3,635 - 3,198 -

109,517 2,791 21,871 22,806
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

Capital risk management 7

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and
non-current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

During 2013, the group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing ratio below 50% (2012: 25%). As a consequence
of the impairment charge of the goodwill for the smartclip group the gearing ratio was 96.7%. Excluding the
impairment charge the gearing ratio would have been 44.1%.

The grbup has secured additional funding through the sale of Adconion Direct North America and Adconion .
Australia to Amobee as described in note 33. Financing will be available to support any outstanding
consideration for current acquisitions and working capital requirements.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
. $000 $000
Total borrowings . ) . 81,083 : 45,768 .
Plus/(less: cash and cash equivalents, net of bank overdrafts 4 6,311 : 1,778
Netdebt - ' 87,394 47,541
Total equity 2,950 163,486
Total capital \ ' 90,344 211,027
Gearing ratio : - 96.7% : _ 22.5%

32. Ultmate parent company and controlling company

The directors consider Adconion Media Group Limited as the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling
_party, a company incorporated in United Kingdom. .

Adconion Media Group Limited is the parent undertaking of the laréest and smallest group of undertakings to
consolidate these financial statements at 31 December 2013. The consolidated financial statement of Adconion
Media Group Limited is available from United Kingdom Company’s house.

33. Postbalance sheet events

In July 2014,‘Amobee, Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary of Singapore Telecommunications Limited acquired -

Adconion Direct North America and Adconion Australia to strengthen its position as the leading provider of
mobile-led digital marketing technology and solutions across all channels and screens for global brands.

The Adconion companies will be acquired at a valuation of $ 235m.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Adconion Media Group Limited

Report on the parent company financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below
e give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its
cash flows for the year then ended,;
¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union and as applied in-accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and
¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006.

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited
The parent company financial statements (the “financial statements "}, which are prepared by Adconion Media
Group Limited, comprise:
.o the parent company statement of ﬁnanc1al position as at 31 December 2013;

e the parent company statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

e the parent company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the financial statements, which mclude a summary of significant accounting pohc1es and

other explanatory information. :

The financial reportmg framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as _
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accountlng estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions
and considered future events.

What an audit of financial statements mvolves
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audltlng (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK
& Ireland)”). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
" misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
o whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s circumﬁarices and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;
e the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and
e the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the ﬁnancial and non-financial information in the Annual report and Financial
statements (the “Annual Report”) to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
* to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
- misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinions on other matters prescrlbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

o the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for whlch the
financial statements are prepared is con51stent with the financial statements.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the members
of Adconion Media Group Limited (continued)

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or .
+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or : '
o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptlons to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration spec1ﬁed by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility. :

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
. As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satlsﬁed that they give a true and fair v1ew

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply w1th the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Adconion Media Group Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Brian Henderson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 freaM oy
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Parent company statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 38 35,656 91,655
Current assets
Other receivables 42 : 97,707 86,379
Cash and cash equivalents 2,352 2,763
100,059 89,142
Total assets 135,715 180,797
Current liabilities .
Trade and other payables 43 (3,304) (3,672)
Borrowings 44 (2,290) (1,071)
Provision for other liabilities and charges 45 (405) (816)
(5,999) (5,559)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings : 44 (37,434) (22,687)
Provision for other liabilities and charges 45 - (338)
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L 4 40 (45) (80)
Share based payments 46 (6,636) (2,676)
_ (44,115) (25,781)
Total liabilities (50,114) (31,340)
Net assets 85,601 149,457
Equity
Called up share capital 47 636 621
Share premium account ' 48 160,960 158,141
Retained earnings (76,190) ' (9,802)
Other reserves 195 497
Total equity 85,601 149,457

These financial statements, which comprise of the Parent Company Statement of Financial Position, the Parent
Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Parent Company Cash Flow Statement and the related notes
were approved and authorised by the board of directors on _ ) (YEGAP 20V Y4~

of the board of directors

The4totes on pages 62 to 77 form part of these financial statements..
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Parent company statement of changes in
equity for the year ended 31 December 2013
{

. Share
Called Up premium Retained Other
share capital account earnings reserves  Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2012 498 91 ,228 (9,547) 331 82,510
Loss for the financial year - - (2,801) - (2,801)

- Total comprehensive income. - - (2,801) - - (2,801)
Share warrants issued (note 44) - - - 223 223
Share warrants exercised (note 44) - 57 - (57) -

. Issue of share capital (note 47, 48) 123 66,856_ - - 66,979
Share based compensation (note 46) - - 2,546 - 2,546
At 31 December 2012 621 158,141 (9,802) 497 149,457 -
Loss for the financial year - - (63,245) - (63,245)
Total comprehensive income - - (63,245) - (63,245)
Share warrants exercised (note 44) - 302 - (302} -
Issue of share capital (note.47, 48) 15 2,517 - - - 2,532
Share based compensation (note 46) - - 263 - 263
Share based compensation settlement - - (3,406) - (3,406)
(note 46) »

At 31 December 2013 636 160,960 (76,190) 195 | 85,601

The notes on pages 62 to 77 form part of these financial statements.
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Adcohion Media Group Limited :

Parent company statement of cash flows for

the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations ) . - 49 (13,073) (4,056)
Income tax paid - (11)
Net cash used in operating activities (13,073) (4,067)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 199 123
Proceeds from borrowing 13,036 3,935
. Repayrhent of borrowing (505) -
Interest paid (68) (7)
Net cash generated from financing activities 12,662 © 4,051
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (411) (16)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,763 2,779
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,352 2,763

The notes on pages 62 to 77 form part of these financial statements.
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013

34. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below and have been consistently applied to all years
presented unless otherwise stated. Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousands and are suffixed with a “k” in
certain disclosure paragraphs unless otherwise stated. :

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Adconion Media Group Limited have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, IFRIC interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although the estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those
estimates. The most significant of these relates to impairments.

Key accounting policies
The key accounting policies for the parent company are the same as those for the group, as disclosed in note 2,
except for those listed below. : :

Foreign currencies :
The parent company’s functional currency is pound sterling and the financial statements are presented in
pounds sterling, which the directors consider is the appropriate presentational currency of the company.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with general accepted accounting practice requlres
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well
as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of |
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. :

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
significant judgments made by management in applying the parent company’s accountlng policies and the key
sources of estimation uncertainty were:

a. Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is defined as the fair value of the
consideration transferred; excluding acquisition related costs. Sharebased payment awards in the parent
company to employees in the subsidiary are capitalised and present contribution from parent company to the
subsidiaries.

b. Contingent deferred consideration :

The Group has estimated the value of future acquisition con31derat10n based on management’s estimate of the
future financial performance of the relevant entities. Assumptions include the future profit levels and
discounting to reflect the time value of money.

c. Written put options

The written put option over the seller's own shares are recognised at the present value of the redemption
amount and accreted through finance charges in the profit or loss for the financial year over the contract period
up to the final redemption amount. '
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_Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

34. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
" Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

d. Fair value of share options

The fair value of share options granted in the year has been assessed using the Black Scholes Option Pr1c1ng
Model. These charges are amended to take into account changes in the number of equity instruments expected
to vest as a consequence of the changes in expectations.

e. Provisions :

Estimating the Pprovisions for onerous contracts and non-compete agreement involves uncertainties in
determining minimum guarantees and non compliance with terms and conditions. Factors to consider in
estimating the costs include litigation procedures, budgets and forecasted results. Changes in these estlmates
would impact future reported results.

f. Share based payments ‘ '
The parent operates various equity-settled and cash-settled share schemes that consist of employee share
option scheme, Share award schemes and put/call share options.

Equity-settled, share based compensation plans

a) Employee share option scheme '

Equity-settled, share based compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the group. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options are recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options and granted:
¢ including any market performance conditions;

"o excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting condmons
e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the

" impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss for the financial year, with a
correspondmg adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

Within the parent company financial statements the grant by the company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over
the vesting perlod as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to

equity.

b) Share award schemes

For equity-settled share award, the fair value is calculated based on the share price at the grant date and, where
applicable, any market vesting conditions, and expensed over the vesting period based on the number of shares
expected to vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional

upon a market or non-vesting condition; which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance or service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to the ﬁnanczal statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (. continued)

34. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
'f. Share based payments (continued)

Cash-settled, share based compensation plans

For cash-settled plans, a liability is recorded, for the services received from employees that are measured at fair
value over the vesting period and the recognition of a corresponding liability at each reporting date with any
movements in fair value being recorded to the appropriate profit or loss for the financial year heading within
the operating results. Any subsequent cash flows from exercise of vested awards are recorded as a reduction of
the liability.

Mutually exclusive awards
Both the Put/call share options and Long Term Incentive Program (‘ LTIP ’) are considered to be two rnutually
exclusive awards, one e(<§1u1ty -settled and one.cash-settled. ' .

_ The cash-settled award, although affected by the probability of being paid, always has a falr value which is
recognised over the vesting period. If the awards are ultlmately settled in equity the fair value of the liability
falls to nil.

The equity-settled alternative is only recognised if it is considered probable. If the award is ultimately settled in
cash the equity alternative would have become improbable and so no cumulative expense would be recognised
for this. Once the contingent settlement provision resolves, the cumulative charge will represent orily the -
expense actually incurred under either the equity or cash settlement option.

35. Result of parent company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the statement of comprehensive income of the parent
company is not presented as part of these financial statements. The parent company’s loss for the financial year
was £63,245k (2012 loss: £2,801Kk). o

36. Auditors’ remuneration

The auditors remuneration for the audit of the company is disclosed in note 9 to the group ﬁnanc1al statements.
Fees paid to the auditors for non-audit services to the company are not required to be disclosed in the
company’s financial statements as group financial statements are presented which disclose such fees.

37. Directors’ emoluments and key management compensation

- During the year, the directors and key management of the company received no emoluments or compensation
directly from the company. The value of their services for the company during the year, if allocated to the
company, would be £nil. _
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" Notes to the financial statements for the year
. ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

38. Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary Subsidiary
Undertakings Undentakings
2013 2012
£000 " £000
Cost
At 1January . - - ‘ 104,681 102,187
Additions , . 3,892 2,948
Dissolution of subsidiaries ' - - (454)
At 31 December R : . 108,573 104,681
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January. - 13,026 13,026
Additions o ‘ 59,891 -
At 31 December ‘ ‘ A 72,917 - 13,026
Net book value N ' '

At 31 December current year . ) ' 35,656 - © 91,655

Included in additions are share based payment awards in the parent company to employees in the subsidiaries.
This presents contribution from parent company to subsidiaries amounting to £3,813k (2012: £2,936Kk). The
remaining amount presents the direct investment in subsidiaries.

The recoverable amount of the investment in the smartclip group has been determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculations uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the planning period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below. Management has determined that the recoverable amount allocated to the
smartclip group CGU had been impaired by £59.9m as a consequence of the impairment test results and the
trading performance in the underlying business. This results in an impairment in the investment in the
smartclip Holding AG by this amount.

The direct investments in subsidiaries comprise the following:

Country of - Holding Principal Activity Proportion of

: - : Incorporation - : ' ‘ ownership Interest
Adconion UK Intermediate Holdings » United Kingdom Ordinary - Holding Company 100%
Limited :
Adconion UK Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Digital Media 100% -
smartclip Holding AG Germany Ordinary Holding Company 100%
Smartclip Mexico SAPI de CV Mexico ' Ordinary Digital Media 75.1%
Adconion Direct Nordics AB ' Sweden Ordinary Digital Media 93%
Adconion Pte Ltd.* - Singapore Ordinary Non trading  * 100%
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 Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

39. Financial instruments by éategory

2013 2012
£000 £000
Assets as per statement of financial position: -
Loans and receivable
Trades and other receivables excluding prepayments 97,353 85,184
Cash and cash equivalents, net of bank overdrafts. 2,352 2,763
99,705 ( 87,947
Liabilities as per statement of financial position: ‘
Financial liabilities at fair value through the P&L 45 80
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings ' ' 39,724 23,758
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities ' 3,052 - 2,584
42,776 26,342
40. Financial liabilities at fgir value through the P&L
2013 2012
‘ £000 £000
Liabilities as per statement of financial position:
Financial liabilities at fair,-va/ue through the P&L
Warrants issued 45 80
45 80
Less non-current portion
Warrants issued (45) (80)

Current pbrtion

Warrants issued - .

" Warrants were issued as part of the loan agreement between Adconion UK Ltd and Silicon Valley Bank, dated

02 March 2010.-
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Notes to the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

41. Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The company’s
financial liabilities carried at fair value are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (fair value is

based on appropriate valuation techniques using non-market observable inputs).

The following table presents the group’s liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2013:

£000
Financial liabilities at fair value through the
P&L
Warrants issued 45
45
The following table presents the group’s liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012:
' £000
Financial liabilities at fair value through the
P&L
Warrants issued 80
80
Reconciliation for the fair value estimation
Warrants Embedded Total
issued derivative arising on a £000
£000 business combination
: ) £000
At 1 January 2012 - 6,062 6,062
Additions 80 - 80
Fair value gain - (6,062) (6,062)
" At 31 December 2012 80" - 80
Additions ' . - -
Fair value gain (35) - (35)
At 31 December 2013 . , o 45 - 45
Additions arising on a business combination are capitalised to investment in subsidiaries.
42. Other receivables
2013 2012
£000 £000
Other receivables ‘ ' 692 235
Amounts due from group undertakings L 96,661 84,949
Other taxation and social security costs 302 1,187
'Prepayments and accrued income S 52 8 .
97,707 86,379

Intercompany loans are receivable on demand and bear interest between 4 and 8% per annum.

Page 67 of 77



Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

‘ 43. Trade and other payables

2013 2012
_ £000 £000
Trade payables : : 74 812
Amounts owed to group undertakings . : * 2,598 1,483
Other taxation and social security cost ' _ ' 252 1,088
Accruals . - ‘ . 380 289
' 3,304 3,672

Intercompany loans are repayable on demgnd and bear interest between 4 and 8% per annum.

44. Borrowings

2013 2012
, £000 £000
Deferred consideration B ‘ _1,606 1,470
Written put options ' ‘ - 566
Shareholder loans : ' 38,118 21,722
' 39,724 23,758
Less non-current portion '
Deferred consideration ‘ ' ‘ : (777) (1,470)
Shareholder loans , ' (36,657) (21,217)
Current portion - _ ! 2,290 1,071

Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration is being settled through a mixture of equity and cash, in accordance with the acquisition -
agreements. Non cash proceeds from borrowings during 2011 amounted to £1,418k and the fair values of the
deferred consideration were calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent debt instrument.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2013 (i contmued)

44. Borrowings (continued)

Shareholder loans

2013 2012

£000 . £000
Opening amount 1 January 21,722 . 16,776
Repayment of shareholder loans - (505) -
Proceeds from shareholder loans 13,036 3,712
Interest paid (57) (75)
Accrued interest - 4,820 1,282
Exchange differences (898) - 27
Liability at 31 December 38,118 21,722
Less non-current portion - 36,657 (21,217)
.Current portion 1,461 505 -

Shareholder loans were issued by the parent company td raise finance for the group in the yeérs 2009, 2011,
2012 and 2013. Cash flow proceeds from borrowings during 2013 amounted to £13,036k (2012: £3,935).

The shareholder loans with warrants issued in 2009 are from 5 year loan notes. Interest is payable at a rate of -
3% per annum payable on the redemption date. Associated with the shareholder loans weré warrants granting
the right to -acquire C ordinary shares of the company. On 29 May 2013, the shareholder loan agreements were
amended. Interest is payable at a rate of 8% per annum after 30 June 2014 payable on the redemption date. The
redemption date will be on the first to occur of 30 June 2015 or an exit event as defined in the agreements. On
04 June 2013 and on 20 June 2013, the shareholder loan agreements for the loans with warrants issued in 2011
were amended. The loans are repayable in quarterly instalments starting in October 2014.
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Notes to the financial statements for the yéar
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

44. Bdrrowings (continued)

Shareholder loans (continued)

Interest is payable at rates between 5% and 10% per annum payable at the relevant redemption dates.
Associated with the shareholder loans were warrants granting the right to acquire C ordinary shares of the
company.

The shareholder loans with warrants issued in 2012 are repayable after 3 years. Interest is payable at a rate of
5% per annum payable on the redemption date. Associated with the shareholder loans were warrants granting
the right to acquire C ordinary shares of the company.

Three sets of shareholder loans were issued in 2013, all notes are repayable after 3 years.

a) Interest will accrue on the notes at the rate of 20% per annum, and is payable at Libor plus 2%
quarterly and the remainder on redemption of the relevant notes. The loan notes will be redeemable at
their principal amount. -

b) Interest will accrue on the notes at the rate of 22% per annum, and is payable on redemption of the
relevant notes. The loan notes will be redeemable at their principal amount.

¢ No interest will accrue on the notes. The loan notes will be redeemable at 2.2 times the prmclpal
amount. :

The fair value of the liability component of the shareholder loans was calculated using a market interest rate for
an equivalent debt instrument. The residual amount, representing the value of the warrants, is included in
shareholders’ equity in other reserves. The value of the lability component and the equity component were
determined at the issuance of the instruments. .

- . . : 2013 2012

Shareholder loans with warrants ) ’ » £000 ‘ £000
Face value : 34,116 21,644
Equity component ‘ (194) (497)
Share premium ) : (1,972) ~ (1,669)

" Exchange differences ' : (844) . (5)
Liability component ’ - 31,106 19,473
Accrued interest ) . 7,012 2,249
Liability at 31 December _ 38,118 ‘ 21,722

Page 70 of 77



Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 ( contmued)

45. Provision for other liabilities and charges

Legal obl'igations

£000
At 1 January 2012 ' : 1,897
Payments : C ' : o - (812)
Accrued interest ' ' _ ' 120
Exchange differences » , ‘ (51)
At 31 December 2012 | ‘ . 1,154 .
L.ess non-current portion ' : . (338)
Current portion o - ' : 816
Payments . ‘ . ’ . (845)
Accrued interest . : 64 .
Exchange differences . 32
At 31 December 2013 - ' - S . 405
Less non-current ponioh . . . ' ) -
Current portion i : ‘ 405

Legal obhganons

" . A historical non-compete agreement was in place with a partner, under whichthe group was not permitted to

trade in Eastern Europe. The acquisition of smartclip, which trades in Russia, triggered a breach of the contract.
The parties have agreed to terminate the contract and the group will pay £1,897k as a compensation payment
over 10 quarters.
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Notes to the financial statements for the'ye'ar
ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

46. Share based payments

Share based payments
£000 Cash settled Equity settled.
(Liability) . (Equity)
Employee share option scheme - A 6,926
Long Term incentive Plan 6,636 -

a) Employee share option scheme

6,636 6,926

The group has a share option scheme for all employees (including directors) within the group Options are
exercisable at a price equal to the average market price of the company’s shares on the date of grant. The
vesting period is between one and four years. The Weighted Average Exercise Price (WAEP) has also been

disclosed for all movements in the number of share options during the year. -

2013 2012
__WAEP . WAEP
_ Number £ ‘Number £
Outstanding at the beginning of the year . 6,128,936 1.84 - 6,782,144 1.80
Granted during the year (strike price of 25,000 '  3.85 134,500 5.50
shares) . -
Exercised during the year : (195,832) ) 0.95 (149,427) 1.23
Forfeited during the year : (611,007) 3.82 (638,281) 2.07
‘Outstanding at the end of the year 5,347,097 1.69 6,128,936 1.87
Exércisab!e at the end of the year 4,983,682 - 155 4,999 877 ) 1.42
Optiohs outstanding at 31 December 2013 comprise the following:
Expiry date . Exercise 2013 2012
price in £ Number ~ Number
31 December 2015 0.05 827,940 940,440
31 December 2016 . 047 254,225 . 327,911 .
31 December 2017 0.78 1,967,457 : 2,109,491
31 December 2018 2.65 362,302 439,930
. 31 December 2019 2.71 685,063 766,000
31 December 2020 2.99 635,144 706,042
31 December 2021 A 4.18 548,466 716,622
31 December 2022 5.50 41,500 122,500
31 December 2023 ) . 3.85 25,000
5,347,097 6,128,936

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £0.96 (2012 £1.87). The weighted average
share price during the year for options exercised over the year was £0.95 (2012 £1.23).
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Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 ( contmued)

46. Share based payments (continued)

a) Employee share option scheme (continued)
The total equity charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £263k (2012 £335k),
all of which related to equity settled share base payments transactions. '

The fair value per option granted was determined using the Black Scholes Qption 'Pn'cing' model with the
following assumptions used in the calculation:.

2013 ' 2012.
‘ £000 £000
~ Weighted average share price - £ ' 3.85 ' 5.50
Weighted éverage exercise price - £  3.85 ' 5.50
Expected volatility - % ’ 25.22 : 38.11
Expected life — years ' o 5.00 5.00
Risk free rate - % » 100 . 1.00
Expected dividend yield - % . i 0.00 0.00

Risk free rate
The risk free rate of 1% was determined using a government bond as a proxy that equates a 5 year expected
lifetime.

Expected d1v1dend yield
The directors do not currently forecast any d1v1dends and hence a yield of 0% has been used.

Expected volatility
In general the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model was used to calculate the fair market value. The volatility of
the stock prlce is calculated over 24 months.

Expected term
A best estimate of 5 years has been selected by the directors based on hlstoncal performance and the current
growth rate of the group.

b) Share award scheme _

As part of the acquisition of smartclip Holding AG and trade and assets of Blackstar Media, LLC, shares were
issued as part of transaction consideration with condition of future employment that are not considered part of
IFRS 3 (R) transaction consideration but instead presented as post combination employee services. Payments
that are for employee services are post-combination remuneration expenses that will be charged to the
combined group’s loss for the financial year in accordance with IFRS 2, ' Share based payments'.

For both acquisitions similar terms and conditions exist of contingent payments payable in shares at future date
and dependent on future employment. Contingent payments are payable in shares at a future date and are
dependent on future employment. The bonus payment for smartclip Holding AG consisted of two payments
payable December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014.

This share consideration was classified as an equity settled share based payment transaction. Share based
payment transactions in which the entity receives services as consideration for its own equity instruments
(including shares or share options). The fair value of the services was measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments granted as consideration estimated. The impact on the results for the year 2013 was a
decrease of £2,220k (2012: credit of £1,684Kk).

¢) Put/call share options

The minority shareholders have exercised their put option in July 2013 and sold their 25% ownership stake
back to the group for a combination of cash, shares in the group and promissory notes. The impact on the
equity instruments granted results in a decrease of £1,186k for the year 2013 (2012: credit of £527Kk).
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46. Share based payments (continued)

b) Long Term Incentive Program ("LTIP")

In 2012, a new award system, the Long Term Incentive Program ("LTIP"), was established. Under the Adconion
Long Term Incentive Plan eligible employees will receive a conditional Award of Adconion Media Group
Limited shares. The vesting of the Award is generally conditional on remaining employed over a three-year"
period and on the satisfaction of certain conditions. Awards under the Plan are not transferable and benefits
under the Plan are not pensionable.

Receipt of this Award under the LTIP is discretionary and only occurs when specified conditions and targets
have been met. Receipt of an Award in one year does not guarantee you will receive an Award in the future or
the level of any future Award. '

As above, the LTIP is considered to be two mutually exclusive awards, one equity-settled and one cash-settled
with a corresponding impact on the results for the year 2013 was £3,960k (2012: £2,676k). The cash-settled
award, although affected by the probability of being paid, always has a fair value which is recognised over the
vesting period up to 31 December 2015 resp. 31 December 2016. If the award is ultimately settled in equity the
fair value of the liability falls to nil. The equity-settled alternative is only recognised if it is considered probable.
If the award is ultimately settled in cash the equity alternative would have become improbable and so no
cumulative expense would be recognised for this. The current estimate of the equity-settled value of this award
is £nil. Although the charge during the vesting period may appear to be in excess of the total value of the award

. granted, once the contingent settlement provision resolves, the cumulative charge will represent only the
expense actually incurred under either the equity or cash settlement option.

47. Called up share capital

2013 ' - 2012

Allotted and called up: Number £ Number £
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each 30,377,993 ' 303,780 - 29,746,432 297,464
A ordinary shares of £0.01 each 2,467,170 24,672 2,467,170 . 24,672
B ordinary shares of £0.01 each 1,400,000 14,000 1,400,000 14,000
C ordinary shares of £0.01 each 15,355,045 ~ 153,550 . 14,449,517 144,495
D ordinary shares of £0.01 each 11,441,053 ) 114,411 11,441,053 114,411
Preference shares of £0.01 each 2,593,750 25,938 2,593,750 - ' 25,938

63,635,011 636,351 62,097,922 620,980

All shares issued by the group were fully paid.

In 2013, 195,832 ordinary shares of £0.01 each were issued to meet share option agreements (strike prices
between £0.07 and £5.50), 905,528 C ordinary shares of £0.01 each were issued to existing shareholders upon
exercise of warrants at an exercise price of £0.01 and 434,792 ordinary shares were issued to fulfil earn out
obligations from acquisitions at a subscription price of £3.85.

In 2012, 149,427 ordinary shares of £0.01 each were issued to meet share option agreements (strike prices
between £0.06 and £3.00), 163,559 C ordinary shares of £0.01 each were issued to existing shareholders upon
exercise of warrants at an exercise price of £0.01, 13,058 C ordinary shares were issued to existing shareholders
at a subscription price of £0.01 and 545,292 ordinary shares and 11,441,053 D ordinary shares were issued in
the course of the smartclip acquisition at a subscription price of £5.50.

The related premium arising on each issue of ordinary shares has been transferred to the share premium
account.

There are no differences in terms of voting rights associated with the six different classes of shares. The
preference shareholders are not entitled to receive a distribution of profits. D ordinary shareholders are ranked
highest in order of preference on winding up, C ordinary shareholders are second in line, and preference
shareholders are third in-line with the remaining shareholders ranked equally.
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. 47. Called up share capital (continued)

Reconciliation of ordinary and preference share

Ordinary - A ordinary B ordinary C ordinary D ordinary Preference

shares of  shares of shares shares shares shares’
£0.01 each £0.01 each of £0.01 of £0.01 of £0.01 of £0.01
£000 £000 each each each each
£000 £000 £000 £000
At1 January 2011 224,997 24,672 14,000 112,816 - 25,938
Share issued during the year 4,056 - - 29,913 - -
Shar9§ issued as part of the " 61,464 ' - - - - -
acquisitions
At 31 December 2011 . -290,517 - 24,672 14,000 142,729 - 25,938
Share issued during the year 6,947 I - 1,766 - -
Shares issued as part of the <. - - ' - 114,411 -
acquisitions ’
At 31 December 2012 297,464 24,672 14,000 144,495 114,411 25,938
Shares issued during the year ‘ 4,348 - - 9,055 - -
Shargg issued as part of the 1,968 - - - - -
acquisitions o :
At 31 December 2013 o 303,780 24,672 14,000 153,550 114,411 25,938,
48. Share premiqm account
' 2013 2012
£000 £000
Balance brought forward 158,141 91,228
Premium on shares issued in the year 2,819 66,913
Balance carried forward 160,960 158,141
49. Cash generated from operations
2013 2012
£000 £000
Loss on ordinary activity before taxation (63,245) (2,801)
-Finance income (2,439) (1,887)
‘Finance cost 5,023 5,082
Other gains — net _ , (35) (5,982)
Impairment on investments in subsidiaries 59,891 -
Provision for legal obligations (845) (812)
Share based payment expense for the year - 625- 26
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (866) 3,680
increase in receivables (12,523) (1,996)
Increase/Decrease in payables 1,341 (266)
Cash outflow from operating activities (13,073) (4,056)
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50. Related party transactions

All transactions within the Adconion Media Group are carried out at arms length.

Shareholder loans were issued by the parent company to raise finance for the group in the years 2009, 2011,

2012 and 2013. Refer to note 44 for the details.

Inter group transactions
As at 31 December 2013 the following amounts were owed (to)/from:

2013

2012
, £000 £000
Adconion GmbH (5349) 1 (509)
Adconion UK Limited 283 181
Adconion Media, Inc. (1,012) -
Adconion Sarl 183 ° 109
Adconion S.L. 29 198
Adconion IP (Switzerland) AG . (605) (583)
Adconion Pty. Limited 478 630
Adconion Platform Servibes, LLC 24 17
s}nartclip_Benequ B.V. 3 -
Arkeero Media S.L. 13 -
Adconion Direct, Inc. 2,354 (16)
smartclip US (formerly Joost Digital, LLC) 99 93 -
Blackstar Marketing, LLC 4 4
Publead S.L. a2 21
Adconion Direct Nordics AB 21 29
smartclip Mexico S.A. de C.V. 37 10
smartclip Holding AG 26,339 25,187
smartclip UK Limited 26 -
' 27,784 25,371

Page 76 of 77



Adconion Media Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year
‘ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

50. Related party transactions

Loans ‘ » .

During the year loans were provided to subsidiary companies, interest bearing at 6% for UK, Switzerland,
Nordics, Germany, France, US and Mexico and 8% for Australia. At 31 December 2013 the following amounts
were outstanding: - :

2013 2012

. £000 £000

Adconion GmbH ‘ . L | . 14,698 11,593
.Adconion UK Limited ’ . C - 5529 . . 2,038
Adconion UK Intermediate Holdings Limited : ‘ 3,330 ' 2,741
Adconion Media, Inc. . ) 40,335 35,464
_ Blackstar Marketing, LLC : , ' - 4,498
.smartclip Holding AG ' ‘ _ 1,702 1,483
Adconion IP (Switzerland) AG : . . 16 : -
Adconion IP (International) AG . . ' A (179) - (136)
Adconion Direct Nordics AB i ‘ - 87 129
smartclip Mexico S.A. de C.V. ' 4 331 285
Adconion Sarl : . ' ' 429 .
' ' 66,278 58,095
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